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Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
Statements contained or incorporated by reference in this Annual Report that are not current or historical
factual statements may constitute forward-looking information within the meaning of applicable Canadian
securities laws. All statements other than statements of historical fact included in this Annual Report that
address activities, events or developments that the Company expects or anticipates will or may occur in the
future, including without limitation, statements regarding any objectives, expectations, intentions, plans,
results, levels of activity, goals or achievements, estimates of mineral reserves and resources, the realization of
mineral reserve estimates, the timing and amount of estimated future production, production guidance, costs
of production, capital expenditures, costs and timing of development, success of exploration activities,
permitting timelines, government regulation of mining operations, environmental risks, and timing and possible
outcomes of pending litigation, negotiations or regulatory investigations, including, the final determination
of the boundaries of the concessions encompassing the El Cajón deposit are or involve forward-looking
statements. Although forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report are based on what
management considers to be reasonable assumptions based on information currently available to it, there can
be no assurances that actual events, performance or results will be consistent with these forward looking
statements, and management’s assumptions may prove to be incorrect. Generally, forward-looking
statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “anticipates”, “assumes”,
“believes”, “budget”, “could”, “estimates”, “expects”, “forecasts”, “guidance”, “indicates”, “intends”, “likely”,
“may”, “objective”, “outlook”, “plans”, “potential”, “predicts”, “scheduled”, “should”, “target”, “trends”, “will”,
or “would” or the negative or other variations of these words or other comparable words or phrases. This
Annual Report, including those risks set out under “Risk Factors” in the Management, Discussion & Analysis
and any documents incorporated herein and therein by reference, contain forward-looking statements
including, but not limited to those relating to the Company. All such forward-looking statements are subject to
important risks, uncertainties and assumptions. These statements are forward-looking because they are based
on current expectations, estimates and assumptions. It is important to know that: (i) unless otherwise indicated,
forward-looking statements in this Annual Report including any documents incorporated herein by reference
describe expectations as at the date hereof; (ii) actual results and events could differ materially from those
expressed or implied in the forward- looking statements in this Annual Report, including the documents
incorporated herein by reference, if known or unknown risks affect the respective businesses of the Company,
or if their estimates or assumptions turn out to be inaccurate. As a result, the Company cannot guarantee that
the results or events expressed or implied in any forward-looking statement will materialize, and accordingly,
you are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements; and (iii) the Company
disclaims any intention and assumes no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statement even if
new information becomes available, as a result of future events or for any other reason, except in
accordance with applicable Canadian securities laws. The Company has made a number of assumptions in
making forward-looking statements in this Annual Report including any documents incorporated herein by
reference.

SCORPIO MINING CORPORATION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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DATED MARCH 30, 2015
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Forward-Looking Statements
Statements contained or incorporated by reference in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(“MD&A”) that are not current or historical factual statements may constitute forward-looking information
within the meaning of applicable Canadian securities laws. All statements other than statements of
historical fact included in this MD&A that address activities, events or developments that the Company
expects or anticipates will or may occur in the future, including without limitation, statements regarding
any objectives, expectations, intentions, plans, results, levels of activity, goals or achievements, estimates
of mineral reserves and resources, the realization of mineral reserve estimates, the timing and amount of
estimated future production, production guidance, costs of production, capital expenditures, costs and
timing of development, success of exploration activities, permitting timelines, government regulation of
mining operations, environmental risks, and timing and possible outcomes of pending litigation,
negotiations or regulatory investigations, including, the final determination of the boundaries of the
concessions encompassing the El Cajón deposit are or involve forward-looking statements. Although
forward-looking statements contained in this MD&A are based on what management considers to be
reasonable assumptions based on information currently available to it, there can be no assurances that
actual events, performance or results will be consistent with these forward looking statements, and
management’s assumptions may prove to be incorrect. Generally, forward-looking statements can be
identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “anticipates”, “assumes”, “believes”, “budget”,
“could”, “estimates”, “expects”, “forecasts”, “guidance”, “indicates”, “intends”, “likely”, “may”, “objective”,
“outlook”, “plans”, “potential”, “predicts”, “scheduled”, “should”, “target”, “trends”, “will”, or “would” or the
negative or other variations of these words or other comparable words or phrases. This MD&A, including
those set out under “Risk Factors” in this MD&A and any documents incorporated herein by reference,
contain forward-looking statements including, but not limited to those relating to the Company. All such
forward-looking statements are subject to important risks, uncertainties and assumptions. These
statements are forward-looking because they are based on current expectations, estimates and
assumptions. It is important to know that: (i) unless otherwise indicated, forward-looking statements in this
MD&A including any documents incorporated herein by reference describe expectations as at the date
hereof; (ii) actual results and events could differ materially from those expressed or implied in the forwardlooking statements in this MD&A, including the documents incorporated herein by reference, if known or
unknown risks affect the respective businesses of the Company, or if their estimates or assumptions turn
out to be inaccurate. As a result, the Company cannot guarantee that the results or events expressed or
implied in any forward-looking statement will materialize, and accordingly, you are cautioned not to place
undue reliance on these forward-looking statements; and (iii) the Company disclaims any intention and
assumes no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statement even if new information
becomes available, as a result of future events or for any other reason, except in accordance with
applicable Canadian securities laws. The Company has made a number of assumptions in making
forward-looking statements in this MD&A including any documents incorporated herein by reference.

Cautionary Note to Investors in the United States Regarding
Resources and Reserves
Information concerning the mineral properties of the Company has been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of Canadian securities laws, which differ in material respects from the requirements of U.S.
securities laws applicable to U.S. companies subject to the reporting and disclosure requirements of the
U.S. Securities Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). Under SEC standards, mineralization may not be
classified as a “reserve” unless the determination has been made that the mineralization could be
economically and legally produced or extracted at the time of the reserve determination, and the SEC
does not recognize the reporting of mineral deposits which do not meet the SEC Industry Guide definition
of “Reserve”. In accordance with Canadian National Instrument 43-101 - Standards of Disclosure for
Mineral Projects (“NI 43-101”), the terms “mineral reserve”, “proven mineral reserve”, “probable mineral
reserve”, “mineral resource”, “measured mineral resource”, “indicated mineral resource” and “inferred
mineral resource” used in this AIF are defined in the Canadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and
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Petroleum (the “CIM”) Definition Standards for Mineral Resources and Mineral Reserves adopted by the
CIM Council on December 11, 2005. While the terms “mineral resource”, “measured mineral resource”,
“indicated mineral resource” and “inferred mineral resource” are recognized and required by the NI 43101, the SEC does not recognize them. Shareholders who are U.S. persons are cautioned that, except
for that portion of the mineral resources classified as mineral reserves, mineral resources do not have
demonstrated economic value. Inferred mineral resources have a high degree of uncertainty as to their
existence as to whether they can be economically or legally mined. Under Canadian securities laws,
estimates of inferred mineral resources may not form the basis of an economic analysis. It cannot be
assumed that all or any part of an inferred mineral resource will ever be upgraded to a higher category.
Therefore, shareholders who are U.S. persons are cautioned not to assume that all or any part of an
inferred mineral resource exists, that it can be economically or legally mined, or that it will ever be
upgraded to a higher category. Likewise, shareholders who are U.S. persons are cautioned not to
assume that all or any part of measured or indicated mineral resources will ever be upgraded to mineral
reserves.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
This MD&A of the results of operations, liquidity and capital resources of Scorpio Mining Corporation
(“Scorpio Mining” or the “Company”) constitutes management’s review of the Company’s financial and
operating performance for the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company’s financial condition and
future prospects. Except as otherwise noted, this discussion is dated March 27, 2015 and should be read
in conjunction with the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto for the
years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013. The audited consolidated financial statements for the years
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. The Company prepared
its latest financial statements in U.S. dollars and all amounts in this MD&A are expressed in U.S. dollars,
unless otherwise stated. These documents along with additional information relating to the Company
including the Company’s most recent annual information form are available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com
and on the Company’s website at www.scorpiomining.com.
In this report, the management of the Company presents operating highlights for the year ended
December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013 as well as comments on plans for
the future.
Securities regulators encourage companies to disclose forward-looking information to help investors
understand a company’s future prospects. This discussion contains statements about the Company’s
future financial condition, results of operations and business. See the cover page of this report for more
information on forward-looking statements.
The Company was incorporated under the Canada Business Corporations Act on May 12, 1998 and
conducts mining exploration, development and production in the Americas. The merger of the Company
and U.S. Silver & Gold Inc. (“U.S. Silver”) was completed on December 23, 2014 pursuant to a plan of
arrangement under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario). The merger was accounted for as a
business combination in accordance with IFRS 3, Business Combinations. Scorpio Mining was
considered the acquirer of U.S. Silver for accounting purposes. As a result, the consolidated financial
statements include U.S. Silver’s results subsequent to December 23, 2014 only. All comparative
information in this MD&A and the consolidated financial statements omit any U.S. Silver results preDecember 23, 2014 or prior period comparatives, unless otherwise stated.
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Overview
The Company is formed under the Canada Business Corporations Act with its head office at 145 King
Street West, Suite 2870, Toronto, Ontario, Canada, M5H 1J8. The Company is a reporting issuer in the
jurisdictions of Ontario, British Columbia, Alberta, and Quebec, and is listed on the TSX trading under the
symbol “SPM”.
The Company has operations in two of the world's leading silver camps: the Cosalá Operations in
Sinaloa, Mexico and the Galena Complex, located in Idaho, USA.
In Sinaloa, Mexico, the Company operates the 100%-owned producing Nuestra Señora silver-zinccopper-lead mine located in the Cosalá District. The Company declared commercial production in
January 2009 following development of the Nuestra Señora Mine and commissioning of the Los Braceros
processing facility. The Cosalá area land holdings also host several other known deposits and prospects
including the San Rafael zinc-lead-silver project and the past producing La Verde silver-copper mine.
The Company is a significant concession holder in the Cosalá District, with holdings of approximately
24,657 hectares (“ha”), containing numerous mineral concessions including previously producing mines.
On April 1, 2010, the Company completed the acquisition of all of the outstanding shares of Platte River
Gold Inc. (“Platte River”), through which the Company acquired several advanced silver-zinc-lead-coppergold deposits, including the El Cajón (“El Cajón Project”) and San Rafael (“San Rafael Project”) deposits
and the La Verde Mine. These properties are located close to the Los Braceros processing plant.
In Idaho, USA, the Company operates the 100%-owned producing Galena Complex which was added
following the business combination with U.S. Silver. The Galena Complex’s primary assets are the
operating Galena Mine, the Coeur Mine, and the contiguous Caladay development project in the Coeur
d’Alene Mining District of northern Idaho. The Galena Complex has recorded production of over 220
million ounces of silver along with associated by-product metals of copper and lead over a modern
production history of more than sixty years. The Coeur Mine and Caladay development project have been
put on care and maintenance pending an improvement in the silver price.
The Company’s mission is to profitably expand its silver production through the development of its own
projects and consolidation of complimentary projects. The Company’s current strategy is focused on
developing the San Rafael Project while continuing to operate the Galena Complex and the Cosalá
Operations. Exploration will continue on prospective targets with an emphasis directed at the Cosalá
District.
The Company’s management and Board of Directors (the “Board”) are comprised of senior mining
executives who have extensive experience identifying, acquiring, developing, financing, and operating
precious metals deposits globally.

Recent Developments
On December 23, 2014, the Company announced the closing of the combination of Scorpio Mining and
U.S. Silver by way of a plan of arrangement. The resulting consolidated company is a growth-oriented
precious metals producer with Scorpio Mining’s producing Cosalá Operations in State of Sinaloa, Mexico
and U.S. Silver’s producing Galena Complex in Idaho, United States. The merger created a leading junior
silver producer in the Americas while removing redundant costs in a lower silver price environment.
The merger was completed by the Company acquiring all of the outstanding common shares of U.S.
Silver and exchanging each outstanding U.S. Silver common share for 1.68 common shares of the
Company. Outstanding U.S. Silver options were exchanged for options of the Company and outstanding
U.S. Silver warrants became exercisable for warrants of the Company under the same exchange ratio.
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As of December 23, 2014, the former shareholders of Scorpio Mining held approximately 60% of the
outstanding common shares of the Company and the former shareholders of U.S. Silver held
approximately 40% of the outstanding common shares of the Company. Additional information can be
obtained from the Management Information Circular available on the Company’s website and on SEDAR
at www.sedar.com.
Cosalá Operations
Subsequent to the merger, the new Board and management team took decisive action from its
assessment of current operations and brownfield expansion opportunities at the Cosalá District:
•
•
•
•
•

El Cajón deposit was put on care and maintenance pending an improvement in silver prices;
Implemented a workforce reduction of almost 25% at the Cosalá Operations;
San Rafael development project to be brought forward in the development pipeline;
Completed the evaluation of highest potential exploration targets; and
Focused on improving margins and transitioning the Cosalá Operations into a near-term cash
flow generator.

Over the course of 2015, the Cosalá Operations will transition into a near-term cash flow generator
through further productivity improvements, implementation of systematic cost controls, and reduction in
workforce. The transition has already commenced and is expected to last through the first half of the year.
As a result, the first quarter of 2015 is expected to be the lowest silver production and highest cost per
ounce quarter of the year while the third and fourth quarters will be the highest silver production and
lowest cost per ounce quarters of the year. The long-term benefit of the transition should allow for multiyear low cost production going forward.
Management is focused on bringing forward the San Rafael deposit in the development pipeline.
Approximately 1,000 meters of geotechnical drilling was completed to assess and better define the
characteristics of the host rocks and mineralization. The deposit hosts a large resource and current efforts
are focused on updating geological models, confirming metallurgy and establishing preliminary mine
design. The Company expects that this work will be completed in the second half of 2015.
The Company identified discrepancies between registered data and mapped information relative to the
boundaries of the concessions encompassing the Company’s El Cajón resource online. A significant
change to the boundaries of concessions from what the Company had historically believed them to be
may result pending final resolution from Dirección General de Regulación Minera (“DGRM”), the Mexican
government bureau responsible for administering mining concessions. The Company’s review of
available information indicates a potential reduction of total resources at El Cajón of 40% to 50%.
The El Cajón mine was placed on care and maintenance in January 2015 in light of the boundary issue
and prevailing metal prices. The halt in development resulted in a gradual staffing reduction of
approximately 90 jobs representing almost 25% of the workforce at the Cosalá Operations over the first
quarter of 2015. Prior to suspension, metallurgical performance was confirmed through a milling
campaign which processed approximately 7,700 tonnes of development muck. With considerable
underground infrastructure already in place, the project can be reactivated on short notice pending an
improvement in economic conditions.
There was evidence of the potential impairment of the carrying value of the Cosalá Operations due to the
cessation of El Cajón Project and due to the continuing decline in metal prices as at December 31, 2014.
As a result of these events, the Company assessed the recoverability of the carrying amount of its
producing and non-producing properties in the Cosalá Operations. The recoverable amount of the
Company’s Cosalá Operations mining properties was determined based on the after-tax discounted cash
flows expected to be derived from this property’s fair-market value less estimated costs to sell. The aftertax discounted cash flows were determined based on life-of-mine cash flow projections which incorporate
management’s best estimates of foreign exchange rates, commodity prices, future capital requirements
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and production costs along with geological assumptions and judgments made in estimating the size,
grade and recovery of the ore bodies. As a result of impairment tests performed as at December 31,
2014, the Company recorded an impairment loss of $53.3 million which is allocated against the Nuestra
Señora Mine and the Company’s non-producing properties.
One-time acquisition costs of approximately $2.0 million have been charged to corporate general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of loss during the year from the merger between
Scorpio Mining and U.S. Silver.
Galena Complex
U.S. Silver’s management has significantly transformed operations at the Galena Complex in response to
the ongoing decline in precious metals price since early 2013. The focus of the transformation was to
maintain cash flow positive operations in the current and rapidly-changing silver price environment. The
foundation for this was to be accomplished by mining higher equivalent grade ore at lower tonnage with
the appropriately-sized workforce. The reduction in workforce was completed in Q3-2013 through the
Small Mine Plan (“SMP”) implementation that reduced staffing levels at Galena from approximately 390 to
240 employees. Since that time, mine management has been focused on the identification, development
and production of sustainable, multi-year, lower cost production by mining the highest value per tonne of
ore regardless of silver content for the lowest possible operating cost.
During the second half of calendar year, U.S. Silver completed the transition of its production from one
based predominantly on silver-copper ore to silver-lead ore. The Galena Mine’s silver-lead ore resources
offer overall higher silver equivalent grades and lower mining costs as these mining areas are typically
wider and may allow for a greater contribution from mechanized mining in the future. This focus led to
lower near-term production in 2014 in order to develop the infrastructure for accessing silver-lead
resources in 2015 and beyond.
Additionally in Q3-2014, U.S. Silver moved the processing of silver-lead ore to the 900 tonne per day
Galena mill in order to handle the greater tonnage, with silver-copper ore now being processed at the 450
tonne per day Coeur mill. During calendar 2014, lead production increased by 39% while silver and
copper production decreased by 24% and 41%, respectively, when compared to 2013.
Despite processing both lower tonnage and lower silver grades, cash costs in 2014 declined compared to
2013 as U.S. Silver continued cost cutting and identifying areas for improvement. In calendar 2014, the
Galena Complex produced 1,621,765 ounces of silver with a by-product cash cost of $15.79/oz silver.
Compared to 2013, these results are a decrease of 11% in cash costs, though with 24% fewer ounces of
silver.
Cost initiatives implemented last year continue to show improvement with the reduction in workforce and
related expenses being the main contributor to the reductions. In Q1-2013, the Galena Complex
employed approximately 390 hourly and salaried staff, whereas in Q4-2014, the mine employed
approximately 240 hourly and salaried staff, representing a reduction of 38%. As noted above, this
decrease in staffing only impacted silver production by 24% when compared to 2013.
Guidance
The Company’s guidance for 2015 is production of 2.6 – 3.0 million silver ounces and 4.6 – 5.2 million
silver equivalent ounces at cash costs of $11.50 – $12.50 per ounce and all-in sustaining costs of $16.50
– $17.50 per ounce.
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Discussion of Consolidated Operations

Revenues ($ M)
Silver Ounces Produced (oz)
Zinc Pounds Produced (lbs)
Lead Pounds Produced (lbs)
Copper Pounds Produced (lbs)
2
Total Silver Equivalent Ounces Produced (oz)
3
Cash Cost/Ag Oz Produced ($/oz)
Net Loss ($ M)
Comprehensive Loss ($ M)
1
2

3

Fiscal Year Ended December 31
1
2014
2013
$
31.5 $
30.2
1,206,603
969,025
12,625,526
14,535,952
6,489,087
6,762,344
1,197,934
1,312,472
2,262,673
2,034,207
$11.31
$12.55
$
(78.7) $
(8.9)
$
(79.1) $
(9.8)

Production from Galena Complex operations included since December 23, 2014.
Silver equivalent ounces produced is based on prices of $20 per ounce silver, $0.90 per pound zinc, $0.95 per pound lead, and
$3.00 per pound copper for fiscal 2014, and $22 per ounce silver, $0.90 per pound zinc, $0.90 per pound lead, and $3.25 per
pound copper for fiscal 2013.
Refer to “Non-IFRS Measures: Cash Cost per Ounce” section in this MD&A.

The Company produced 2,262,673 silver equivalent ounces, including 1,206,603 ounces of silver, at byproduct cash cost of $11.31/oz silver during 2014. These results compare to 2,034,207 silver equivalent
ounces, including 969,025 ounces of silver, at a by-product cash cost of $12.55/oz silver during 2013, a
11% and 24% increase in production of silver equivalent ounces and silver ounces, respectively, and a
10% decrease in by-product cash cost.
The consolidated operations above include U.S. Silver results from December 23, 2014 to December 31,
2014. If U.S. Silver had been consolidated from January 1, 2014, the Company would have produced
4,367,649 silver equivalent ounces, including 2,799,404 ounces of silver, at by-product cash cost of
$13.75/oz silver during 2014. These results compare to the production of 4,571,694 silver equivalent
ounces, including 3,089,849 ounces of silver, at by-product cash cost of $16.13/oz silver during 2013, a
4%, 9%, and 15% decrease in production of silver equivalent ounces, silver ounces and by-product cash
cost, respectively.
The Company recorded a net loss of $78.7 million for the year ended 2014 compared to net loss of $8.9
million for the year ended 2013. The increase in net loss was primarily attributable to lower realized metal
prices, higher depletion and amortization, higher corporate general and administrative expenses, higher
impairment of mining interests, higher unrealized loss on derivative liability, and higher income tax
expense, partially offset by lower impairment of investment. These variances are further discussed in the
following sections.
For the purposes of this “Discussion of Consolidated Operations” section of the MD&A, the calculation of
silver equivalent ounces produced is based on prices of $20 per ounce silver, $0.90 per pound zinc,
$0.95 per pound lead, and $3.00 per pound copper for fiscal 2014, and $22 per ounce silver, $0.90 per
pound zinc, $0.90 per pound lead, and $3.25 per pound copper for fiscal 2013.
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Cosalá Operations Production and Operating Costs
Fiscal Year Ended December 31
2014
2013
Tonnes Milled
Silver Head Grade (g/t)
Zinc Head Grade (%)
Lead Head Grade (%)
Copper Head Grade (%)
Silver Recoveries (%)
Zinc Recoveries (%)
Lead Recoveries (%)
Copper Recoveries (%)
Silver Ounces Produced (oz)
Zinc Pounds Produced (lbs)
Lead Pounds Produced (lbs)
Copper Pounds Produced (lbs)
1
Total Silver Equivalent Ounces Produced (oz)
Silver Ounces Sold (oz)
Zinc Pounds Sold (lbs)
Lead Pounds Sold (lbs)
Copper Pounds Sold (lbs)
Realized Silver Price ($/oz)
Realized Zinc Price ($/lb)
Realized Lead Price ($/lb)
Realized Copper Price ($/lb)
2
Cash Cost/Ag Oz Produced ($/oz)
1

2

536,336
82
1.44
0.78
0.20
82.9
78.6
72.4
50.4
1,177,639
12,625,526
6,298,897
1,190,947
2,223,627
1,171,540
12,743,155
6,162,566
1,177,387
$18.85
$0.97
$0.92
$3.03
$11.12

534,043
70
1.65
0.82
0.23
81.0
74.8
70.0
48.5
969,025
14,535,952
6,762,344
1,312,472
2,034,207
942,542
14,285,005
6,625,143
1,297,715
$22.71
$0.85
$0.97
$3.31
$12.55

Silver equivalent ounces produced is based on prices of $20 per ounce silver, $0.90 per pound zinc, $0.95 per pound lead, and
$3.00 per pound copper for fiscal 2014, and $22 per ounce silver, $0.90 per pound zinc, $0.90 per pound lead, and $3.25 per
pound copper for fiscal 2013.
Refer to “Non-IFRS Measures: Cash Cost per Ounce” section in this MD&A.

The Cosalá Operations mined 536,336 tonnes of ore at an average grade of 82 g/t of silver to produce
1,177,639 ounces of silver at a cash cost of $11.12/oz during 2014, compared to 534,043 tonnes of ore at
an average grade of 70 g/t of silver to produce 969,025 ounces of silver at a cash cost of $12.55/oz
during 2013, a 1% and 22% increase in tons of ore mined, ounces of silver produced, respectively, and a
11% decrease in cash cost per ounce. Silver recovery to concentrate was 82.9% in 2014 (2013 – 81.0%).
Cash costs of $11.12/oz for fiscal 2014 were lower than cash costs of $12.55/oz for fiscal 2013 primarily
due to processing ore with higher average silver head grades resulting in increased production of silver
during fiscal 2014. By-product credits was lower for fiscal 2014 as zinc, lead and copper production
decreased due to lower head grades when compared to fiscal 2013.
Realized silver prices at $18.85/oz for 2014 (2013 – $22.71/oz) is comparable to the London silver spot
price average of $19.08/oz for 2014 (2013 – $23.79/oz). The realized silver price declined by 17% from
$22.71/oz during 2013 to $18.85/oz during 2014 due to the drop in silver prices.
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Galena Complex Production and Operating Costs

Tonnes Milled
Silver Head Grade (g/t)
4
Lead Head Grade (%)
4
Copper Head Grade (%)
Silver Recoveries (%)
Lead Recoveries (%)
Copper Recoveries (%)
Silver Ounces Produced (oz)
Lead Pounds Produced (lbs)
Copper Pounds Produced (lbs)
2
Total Silver Equivalent Ounces Produced (oz)
Silver Ounces Sold (oz)
Lead Pounds Sold (lbs)
Copper Pounds Sold (lbs)
Realized Silver Price ($/oz)
Realized Lead Price ($/lb)
Realized Copper Price ($/lb)
3
Cash Cost/Ag Oz Produced ($/oz)
1
2
3

4

Fiscal Year
1
2014

Calendar Year
2014

Calendar Year
2013

2,706
349
6.26
0.28
95.4
90.3
97.5
28,964
190,190
6,987
39,046
9,824
178,047
$16.28
$0.83
$19.18

144,773
365
5.75
0.42
95.5
91.7
95.9
1,621,765
9,143,751
586,190
2,144,022
1,658,272
8,992,826
632,618
$19.08
$0.95
$3.11
$15.79

176,479
388
6.90
0.36
96.4
94.0
96.2
2,120,824
6,567,821
1,001,710
2,537,487
2,207,106
6,676,254
1,041,625
$24.10
$0.98
$3.37
$17.76

Production from Galena Complex operations included since December 23, 2014.
Silver equivalent ounces produced is based on prices of $20 per ounce silver, $0.95 per pound lead, and $3.00 per pound
copper for fiscal 2014, and $22 per ounce silver, $0.90 per pound lead, and $3.25 per pound copper for fiscal 2013.
Refer to “Non-IFRS Measures: Cash Cost per Ounce” section in this MD&A.
Lead and silver grades only refer to grades in silver-lead and silver-copper ores, respectively.

The Galena Complex mined 144,773 tonnes of ore at an average grade of 365 g/t of silver to produce
1,621,765 ounces of silver at a cash cost of $15.79/oz during calendar 2014, compared to 176,479
tonnes of ore at an average grade of 388 g/t of silver to produce 2,120,824 ounces of silver at a cash cost
of $17.76/oz during 2013, a 18%, 24%, and 12% decrease in tons of ore mined, ounces of silver
produced, and cash cost per ounce, respectively. Approximately 36% of the tons were processed through
the Coeur mill (2013 – 26%). Combined silver recoveries from the Galena and Coeur mills were 95.5% for
2014 (2013 – 96.4%). Production of lead during 2014 increased 39% as compared to 2013. The Galena
Complex swapped the milling of silver-lead ore from Coeur mill to the Galena mill in July 2014 in order to
handle the greater silver-lead tonnage.
Cash costs of $15.79/oz for calendar 2014 were lower than cash costs of $17.76/oz for calendar 2013
primarily due to the implementation of the SMP as tons milled decreased 18% and production decreased
24%. Direct mining costs (i.e. labour, supplies, utilities, etc.) and smelting and refining expenses were
reduced on a silver produced per ounce basis as average equivalent grades increased during calendar
2014, resulting in the lower cash costs experienced.
Realized silver prices at $19.08/oz for calendar 2014 (2013 – $24.10/oz) is comparable to the London
silver spot price average of $19.08/oz for 2014 (2013 – $23.79/oz). The realized silver price declined by
21% from $24.10/oz during 2013 to $19.08/oz during calendar 2014 due to the drop in silver prices.

10 Scorpio Mining Corporation 2014 Annual Report

Scorpio Mining Corporation
Management’s Discussion & Analysis
For the year ended December 31, 2014

Exploration Update
Cosalá Operations Exploration Update
Nuestra Señora
Over 7,000 m of diamond drilling was completed at Nuestra Señora in support of short term mining
activities. The main area for this work was in the upper levels (above Level 8) where previous operators
appear to have left material suitable for mining and processing.
Surface mapping was carried out near the portal of the Nuestra Señora mine following up on outcropping
mineralization for which no records of previous work existed. Two areas, Santo Domingo and Santa
Helena were mapped and sampled. Both areas were determined to be prospective. The area was
preliminarily tested by drill holes were drilled from underground. Further drilling is contemplated.
A concession (Cosalá II) was acquired which touches the company’s property holding at Nuestra Señora
on three sides. Preliminary contacts were made to gain surface access to this ground. Archeological
studies have been completed.
San Rafael
Exploration permits covering parts of the San Rafael and El Cajón areas were received in early
November 2014. Drilling commenced soon thereafter and approximately 1,000 meters of a 2,400 meter
geotechnical drill program were completed in 2014.
Management is focused on advancing the San Rafael deposit to a production decision. The Company
expects this work will be completed in the second half of 2015.
El Cajón
Approximately 1,060 meters of drilling was completed to provide geotechnical information for the design
of the underground program. Several short holes were drilled near the current portal to aid in tunnel
design and one deeper hole in this area was a pilot hole for a ventilation raise. Three deeper holes were
drilled from surface to depths of approximately 250 meters to collect data for stope design in the Main
Cajón ore body. As previously stated, the El Cajón mine was placed on care and maintenance in January
2015.
No resources from the El Cajón deposit have been included in the current reserve and resource
estimates disclosed for the company. Management again cautions that the mineral resource estimate or
any future development plans with respect to the El Cajón deposit contained in the Cosalá Technical
Report dated April 12, 2013 should no longer be relied upon. The Company will make a decision as to
whether to prepare an updated mineral resource estimate for the El Cajón deposit and a revised technical
report, prepared in accordance with NI 43-101, following the DGRM’s final confirmation of the concession
boundaries underlying the El Cajón deposit.
La Verde
Approximately 84 holes and 10,800 meters of previous drilling was re-logged and resampled in order to
develop a better geological model of the La Verde deposits. Re-mapping of the underground workings
was performed. In analyzing this information, several previously identified ore zones were found to be
faulted extensions or duplications of two principle ore zones with some minor intervening zones. The
majority of mineralization was found to be contained within two coalescing faults.
Drilling totalling approximately 2,000 meters was completed to investigate potential extensions of known
mineralized zones and to explore for additional zones in areas where some discontinuous mineralization
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was detected. This work determined there were some extensions of known zones which could be
developed and identified the presence of a previously unknown mineralized area (South Zone). Further
investigation is warranted.
A second program of 2,000 meters was completed to pursue definition of these zones. The Company
expects this program will be completed in Q2-2015.
Humaya/La Estrella
A program of mapping and sampling was begun in an area north of San Rafael in order to assess the
potential in this area. In conjunction with this program, dumps and other unprocessed material were
sampled and quantified. Based on this program, a permit was sought to recover this material. A
reclamation program is ongoing whereby profitable material is reclaimed for processing at the Los
Braceros plant. No mineral resource has been reported for the remaining material.
In conjunction with this work, mapping is leading to a working model for the area which suggests there
may be significant in-situ mineralized material available in a NW trending block of material. Further drilling
may be necessary after additional mapping to explore this potential.
Regional Mapping
The entire region including and surrounding our claims was remapped taking into account the results of a
satellite based structural analysis performed in 2012 and 2013. The result is an improved understanding
of the geology. Additional work remains to incorporate older regional geology which implies vertical
movements of faults and may impact interpretation.
Galena Complex Exploration Update
Drilling during the fourth quarter of calendar 2014, U.S. Silver continued to focus on near-term resources
and to provide information to the mining operations to assist with defining the highest value per tonne of
ore for mining. Drilling at the Galena Complex has been accomplished totally by in-house drilling with four
drill crews currently operating. In-house drilling continues to be a cost effective method to explore and
define resources at the Galena Mine.
The focus of the exploration work at the Galena Complex continues to be:
•
•
•

Develop immediate and near-term, minable, high-grade equivalent silver resources in proximity to
existing infrastructure to support the mine operations;
Define silver-lead areas between 3000, 3700 and 5000 levels for mining going forward; and
Complete block modelling on priority veins and evaluate all drill results in preparation for an
updated reserve and resource estimate based on results to the end of 2014.

U.S. Silver drilled 2,462 meters (8,007 feet) underground at the Galena Complex in the fourth quarter
bringing the year-to-date total to 5,105 meters (16,748 feet) for 2014. A portion of this drilling was
completed to advance block modeling of the newly, re-evaluated series of veins in the upper part of the
mine. Geologists now have an improved picture of potentially high-grade, minable silver/lead veins in the
3000 to 3700 level area. Five of these veins have been delineated by the recent drilling and are now
modeled. These silver-lead veins underwent limited historical development prior to the mine’s decadeslong focus on silver-copper ore. As a result, only a small amount of production mining took place and the
resource was left readily available via established development and infrastructure. Initial work has
commenced in preparation for renewed mining in these new areas. Meaningful production from this area
is expected to begin in 2015.
The Company’s exploration staff is continuing work to confirm and upgrade the existing resources
through block modeling and drilling. The technical report dated March 22, 2013 can be obtained from the
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Company’s website at www.scorpiomining.com and on SEDAR at www.sedar.com. A new reserve and
resource update has been completed by mine staff based on results to the end of 2014.
Mr. Jim Atkinson, Vice President, Exploration and a ‘qualified person’ under NI 43-101 guidelines
(“Qualified Person”), has approved the applicable contents of this section.

Results of Operations
Analysis of the year ended December 31, 2014 vs. the year ended December 31, 2013
The Company recorded a net loss of $78.7 million for the year ended 2014 compared to net loss of $8.9
million for the year ended 2013. The increase in net loss was primarily attributable to lower realized metal
prices ($1.3 million), higher depletion and amortization ($4.5 million), higher corporate general and
administrative expenses ($2.4 million), higher impairment of mining interests ($52.2 million), higher
unrealized loss on derivative liability ($0.5 million), and higher income tax expense ($13.2 million),
partially offset by lower impairment of investment ($4.6 million), each of which are described in more
detail below:
Revenues increased by $1.3 million from $30.2 million for the year ended 2013 to $31.5 million for the
year ended 2014. The increase is primarily due to increase in production of silver equivalent ounces
offset by lower average realized metal prices for the periods involved. At the Cosalá Operations for the
fiscal year ended 2014, silver equivalent ounces of 2.2 million ounces were produced compared to 2.0
million ounces produced for the fiscal year ended 2013. The ounces of silver were sold for the year ended
2014 at an average realized price of $18.85/oz compared to $22.71/oz for the year ended 2013.
Cost of Sales increased by $2.6 million from $23.5 million for the year ended 2013 to $26.1 million for
the year ended 2014. The increase is primarily due to increase in production of silver equivalent ounces
by approximately 11% offset by decrease in direct mining costs on a per silver ounce basis during 2014.
Depletion and amortization increased by $4.5 million from $6.5 million for the year ended 2013 to $11.0
million for the year ended 2014. The increase is primarily due to increase in production during the year
and the estimated remaining mine life of Nuestra Señora.
Corporate general and administrative expenses increased by $2.4 million from $2.9 million for the year
ended 2013 to $5.4 million for the year ended 2014. The increase is primarily due to $2.0 million incurred
in acquisition costs on the U.S. Silver merger plus $0.9 million incurred on shareholder action costs
during the year, offset by a decrease in share-based payments of $0.3 million during the year.
Impairment of mining interests increased by $52.2 million from $1.1 million for the year ended 2013 to
$53.3 million for the year ended 2014. The increase is primarily due to indicators of impairment from the
continuing decline of precious metals prices, the limited remaining mine life of Nuestra Señora and the
care and maintenance of El Cajón.
Unrealized loss on derivative liability of $0.5 million was recognized during the year ended 2014 from
the decreased value of foreign exchange derivatives on Mexican pesos as at year-end. This impact has
no effect on the Company’s cash flows until the foreign exchange derivatives are settled.
Impairment of investment decreased by $4.6 million from $5.3 million for the year ended 2013 to $0.7
million for the year ended 2014. The decrease is primarily due to the change in fair value of the
Company’s available-for-sale investment in the common shares of Scorpio Gold Corporation.
Income tax expense increased by $13.2 million from $0.5 million recovery for the year ended 2013 to
$12.7 million expense for the year ended 2014. The increase is primarily due to recognizing valuation
allowance against Mexican non-capital losses carried forward which may be used to reduce future
taxable income.
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Analysis of the three months ended December 31, 2014 vs. the three months ended December 31, 2013
The Company recorded a net loss of $73.5 million for the three months ended December 31 2014
compared to net loss of $1.8 million for the three months ended December 31, 2013. The increase in net
loss was primarily attributable to lower realized metal prices ($1.2 million), higher depletion and
amortization ($1.1 million), higher corporate general and administrative expenses ($2.0 million), higher
impairment of mining interests ($53.3 million), higher unrealized loss on derivative liability ($0.4 million),
and higher income tax expense ($13.9 million), each of which are described in more detail below:
Revenues decreased by $0.4 million from $7.2 million for the three months ended December 31, 2013 to
$6.8 million for the three months ended December 31, 2014. The decrease is primarily due to lower
average realized metal prices for the periods involved.
Cost of Sales increased by $1.0 million from $6.0 million for the three months ended December 31, 2013
to $6.9 million for the three months ended December 31, 2014. The increase is primarily due to increase
in production of silver equivalent ounces by approximately 18% offset by decrease in direct mining costs
on a per silver ounce basis during the period.
Depletion and amortization increased by $1.1 million from $2.0 million for the three months ended
December 31, 2013 to $3.1 million for the three months ended December 31, 2014. The increase is
primarily due to increase in production during the period and the estimated remaining mine life of Nuestra
Señora.
Corporate general and administrative expenses increased by $2.0 million from $0.5 million for the
three months ended December 31, 2013 to $2.5 million for the three months ended December 31, 2014.
The increase is primarily due to $2.0 million incurred in acquisition costs on the U.S. Silver merger during
the period.
Impairment of mining interests of $53.3 million was recognized during the three months ended
December 31, 2014 primarily due to indicators of impairment from the continuing decrease in metals
prices, the limited remaining mine life of Nuestra Señora and the care and maintenance of El Cajón.
Unrealized loss on derivative liability of $0.4 million was recognized during the three months ended
December 31, 2014 from the decreased value of foreign exchange derivatives on Mexican pesos as at
year-end. This impact has no effect on the Company’s cash flows until the foreign exchange derivatives
are settled.
Income tax expense increased by $13.9 million from $0.2 million for the three months ended 2013 to
$14.1 million for the three months ended 2014. The increase is primarily due to recognizing valuation
allowance against Mexican non-capital losses carried forward which may be used to reduce future
taxable income.
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Selected Annual Financial Information
Fiscal Year Ended December 31
Revenues ($ M)
Net Income (Loss) ($ M)
Comprehensive Income (Loss) ($ M)

2014
$

1

31.5
(78.7)
(79.1)

$

(0.39) $
(0.39)

2013
30.2
(8.9)
(9.8)

$

Silver Ounces Produced (oz)
Zinc Pounds Produced (lbs)
Lead Pounds Produced (lbs)
Copper Pounds Produced (lbs)
2
Cash Cost/Ag Oz Produced ($/oz)

1,206,603
969,025
1,184,964
12,625,526 14,535,952 16,463,134
6,489,087
6,762,344
6,550,418
1,197,934
1,312,472
1,608,276
$
11.31 $
12.55 $
10.21

Cash ($ M)
Receivables ($ M)
Inventories (Concentrates and Supplies) ($ M)

$

$

15.4
9.3
8.5

$

2012
45.8
7.1
3.2

Net Income (Loss) per Common Share - Basic
Net Income (Loss) per Common Share - Diluted

15.2
6.8
12.4

(0.04)
(0.04)

$

$

0.04
0.04

23.7
8.3
7.0

Property, Plant and Equipment ($ M)

81.3

92.5

90.4

Current Assets ($ M)
Current Liabilities ($ M)
Working Capital ($ M)

36.9
15.8
21.1

36.3
2.6
33.7

47.1
2.2
44.9

118.6
33.2

139.8
4.4

148.3
3.9

Total Assets ($ M)
Total Liabilities ($ M)
1
2

Production from Galena Complex operations included since December 23, 2014.
Refer to “Non-IFRS Measures: Cash Cost per Ounce” section in this MD&A.
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Summary of Quarterly Results
The following table presents a summary of the consolidated operating results for each of the most recent
eight quarters ending with December 31, 2014.
Q4
1
2014
Revenues ($ M)
$
6.8 $
Net Income (Loss) ($ M)
(73.5)
Comprehensive Income (Loss) ($ M)
(72.9)

Q3
2014
7.7 $
(2.3)
(3.5)

Q2
2014
8.8 $
(1.8)
(1.2)

Q1
2014
8.2 $
(1.1)
(1.5)

Q4
2013
7.2 $
(1.8)
(1.3)

Q3
2013
8.3 $
(5.2)
(0.1)

Q2
2013
5.6 $
(3.1)
(7.1)

Q1
2013
9.0
1.2
(1.3)

Silver Ounces Produced (oz)
Zinc Pounds Produced (lbs)
Lead Pounds Produced (lbs)
Copper Pounds Produced (lbs)
2
Cash Cost/Ag Oz Produced ($/oz)

318,137 277,796 316,722 293,948 262,380 240,499 214,926 251,220
3,329,584 2,830,816 3,478,500 2,986,626 3,406,341 4,737,785 3,198,082 3,193,744
1,771,927 2,130,746 1,388,750 1,197,664 1,443,955 2,036,142 1,474,544 1,807,703
339,144 274,213 256,913 327,664 333,023 200,633 338,862 439,954
$11.60
$9.25
$10.62
$13.71
$15.18
$11.01
$15.91
$8.42

Current Assets (qtr. end) ($ M)
Current Liabilities (qtr. end) ($ M)
Working Capital (qtr. end) ($ M)

$

Total Assets (qtr. end) ($ M)
Total Liabilities (qtr. end) ($ M)
Total Equity (qtr. end) ($ M)
1
2

36.9
15.8
21.1
118.6
33.2
85.4

$

29.7
4.4
25.3
135.7
6.3
129.4

$

33.6
4.1
29.5

$

138.7
5.9
132.8

35.7
3.4
32.3

$

139.3
5.2
134.1

36.3
2.6
33.7
139.8
4.4
135.4

$

37.9
2.9
35.0
141.3
4.6
136.7

$

39.4
3.5
35.9
141.7
5.1
136.6

$

46.7
2.8
43.9
147.8
4.5
143.3

Production from Galena Complex operations included since December 23, 2014.
Refer to “Non-IFRS Measures: Cash Cost per Ounce” section in this MD&A.

Liquidity
As of December 31, 2014, the Company’s cash totalled $15.2 million, compared to $15.4 million at
December 31, 2013. Working capital decreased to $21.1 million at December 31, 2014 from $33.7 million
at December 31, 2013, a decrease of $12.6 million. Current liabilities as at December 31, 2014 were
$15.8 million which is $13.2 million higher than at December 31, 2013 mainly due timing of payments
including the monthly redemption of credit facility expected to commence second half of 2015.
The change in cash since December 31, 2013 can be summarized as follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):

Opening cash as at December 31, 2013
Cash used in operations
Capital expenditures
Cash from acquisition of U.S. Silver & Gold Inc.
Decrease in receivables due to timing of shipments
Increase in payables during the period
Closing cash as at December 31, 2014

$

15.4
(0.4)
(14.5)
4.3
5.7
4.7
$ 15.2

The Company believes that it will have sufficient cash flow to fund its 2015 operations and development
and exploration plans while meeting production targets at current commodity price levels. In the longer
term, as the Cosalá Operations and Galena Complex are optimized and if the outlook for silver prices
remains positive, the Company believes that cash flows will be sufficient to fund ongoing
operations. Management is continuously evaluating viable financing alternatives to ensure sufficient
liquidity including private equity financing, debt instruments, concentrate offtake agreements, sales of
non-core assets, and the issuance of equity.
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The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash, trade receivables, restricted cash, long-term
investments, trade and other payables, credit facility, and other long-term liabilities. The fair value of
these financial instruments approximates their carrying values, unless otherwise noted. The Company is
not exposed to significant interest or credit risk arising from financial instruments. The majority of the
funds of the Company are held in accounts at major banks in Canada, Mexico and the United States.
The Company’s liquidity has been, and will continue to be, impacted by pension funding commitments as
required by the terms of the defined benefit pension plans offered to both its hourly and salaried workers
(See note 14 in the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and the notes thereto for
the years ended December 31, 2014). Although both pension plans are under-funded due to actuarial
losses incurred from current market conditions, the Company intends to fund to the minimum levels
required by applicable law. The Company currently estimates total annual funding requirements for both
pension plans to be approximately $0.8 million per year for each of the next 5 years.

Capital Resources
The Company’s cash flow is dependent on delivery of its concentrates to its smelters and concentrate
traders. The Company’s contracts with these parties provide for provisional payments based on timing of
concentrate deliveries. The Company has not had any problems collecting payments from smelters in a
reliable and timely manner and expects no such difficulties in the foreseeable future. However, this cash
flow is dependent on continued mine production which can be subject to interruption for various reasons
including fluctuations in metal prices and concentrate shipment difficulties. Additionally, unforeseen
cessation in the counterparty’s capabilities could severely impact the Company’s capital resources.
The Company made capital expenditures of $14.5 million in 2014 and $9.7 million for the same period of
2013, of which $12.4 million was spent towards drilling and underground development costs while $2.1
million was spent on purchase of property, plant and equipment. All of these projects are dependent upon
the Company maintaining a strong capital position. The Company plans to continue underground
exploration utilizing diamond core drilling.
The following table sets out the Company’s contractual obligations as of December 31, 2014:
Total
Trade and other payables
Derivative liability
Credit facility
Interest on credit facility
Leases
Other long-term liabilities
Decommissioning provision
Total

$ 13,070
502
7,747
1,130
70
559
4,832
$ 27,910

Less than
3 months
$ 13,070
502
223
7
32
$ 13,834

3 months
to 1 year
$

2,155
625
21
96
$ 2,897

2-5 years
$

5,592
282
42
833
$ 6,749

Over 5
Years
$

559
3,871
$ 4,430

1 - All leases can be cancelled upon proper notice periods by the Company.
2 - Certain of these estimates are dependent on market conditions and assumed rates of return on assets. Therefore, the
estimated obligation of the Company may vary over time.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of the date of this filing, the Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have, or
are reasonably likely to have, a current or future effect on the results of operations or financial condition of
the Company including, without limitation, such considerations as liquidity and capital resources that have
not previously been discussed.

Transactions with Related Parties
There were no related party transactions for the year ended December 31, 2014.

Risk Factors
The business of the Company is subject to a substantial number of risks and uncertainties. In addition to
considering the information disclosed in the financial statements and in the other publicly filed
documentation regarding the Company available at www.sedar.com, the reader should carefully
consider the following information. Any of these risk elements could have material adverse effects on the
business of the Company. See “Note 7 – Financial Risk Management” of the Company’s audited
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2014.
Current Global Financial and Economic Conditions
Current global financial and economic conditions remain fragile following the 2008/2009 financial crisis.
Several major international financial institutions and other large, international enterprises either filed
for bankruptcy or were actively rescued by governmental intervention at that time and access to public
and private capital and financing continues to be challenging. Such factors may impact the Company’s
ability to obtain financing in the future on favourable terms. Additionally, global economic conditions may
cause a long-term decrease in asset values. If such global volatility and market uncertainty continue, the
Company’s operations and financial condition could be adversely impacted.
Risks Associated with Market Fluctuations in Commodity Prices
The majority of the Company’s revenue is derived from the sale of silver, copper, zinc and lead
contained in concentrates. Fluctuations in the prices of these commodities represent one of the most
significant factors affecting the Company’s results of operations and profitability. If the Company
experiences low silver, copper, zinc, and lead prices, it may result in decreased revenues and
decreased net income, or losses, and may negatively affect the Company’s business.
The market price for silver, copper, zinc and lead continues to be volatile and is influenced by a number
of factors, including, among others, levels of supply and demand, global or regional consumptive
patterns, sales by government holders, metal stock levels maintained by producers and others,
increased production due to new mine developments, improved mining and production methods,
speculative trading activities, inventory carrying costs, availability and costs of metal substitutes,
international economic and political conditions, interest rates and the relative exchange rate of the US
dollar with other major currencies. The aggregate effect of such factors (all of which are beyond the
control of the Company) is impossible to predict with any degree of accuracy, and as such, the
Company can provide no assurances that it can effectively manage such factors. In addition, the price of
silver, has on occasion been subject to very rapid short-term changes due to speculative activities.
Fluctuations in silver and other commodity prices may materially adversely affect the Company’s
financial performance or results of operations. The world market price of commodities has fluctuated
during the last several years. Declining market prices for silver and other metals could have a material
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adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations and profitability. If the market price of silver and
other commodities falls significantly from its current levels, the operation of the Company’s properties
may be rendered uneconomic and such operation and exploitation may be suspended or delayed.
In particular, if the price of silver is depressed for a sustained period and net losses accumulate, the
Company may be forced to suspend some or all of its mining until the price increases, and record asset
impairment write-downs. Any lost revenues, continued or increased net losses, or asset impairment
write-downs would adversely affect the Company’s results of operations.
Operational Risks
Substantial risks are associated with mining and milling operations. The Company’s commercial
operations are subject to all the usual hazards and risks normally encountered in the exploration,
development and production of silver, copper, zinc and lead, including, among other things: unusual and
unexpected geologic formations, inclement weather conditions, seismic activity, rock bursts, cave-ins,
flooding and other conditions involved in the drilling and removal of material, any of which could result in
damage to, or destruction of, mines and other producing facilities, catastrophic damage to property or
loss of life, labour disruptions, equipment failure or failure of retaining dams around tailings disposal
areas which may result in environmental pollution and legal liability. The Company will take appropriate
precautions as are applicable to similar mining operations and in accordance with general industry
standards to help mitigate such risks. However, the Company can provide no assurances that its
precautions will actually succeed in mitigating, or even reducing the scope of potential exposure to, such
operational risks.
There can be no Certainty that the Company’s Exploration and Development Activities will be
Commercially Successful
Substantial efforts and compliance with regulatory requirements are required to establish mineral
reserves through drilling and analysis, to develop metallurgical processes to extract metal and, in the
case of development properties, to develop and construct the mining and processing facilities and
infrastructure at any site chosen for mining. Shareholders cannot be assured that any reserves or
mineralized material acquired or discovered will be in sufficient quantities to justify commercial
operations.
Mineral Reserves and Resources, Development and Production
The estimation of ore reserves is imprecise and depends upon a number of subjective factors.
Estimated ore reserves or production guidance may not be realized in actual production. The
Company’s operating results may be negatively affected by inaccurate estimates. Reserve estimates
are a function of geological and engineering analyses that require the Company to make assumptions
about production costs and the market price of silver and other metals. Reserve estimation is based on
available data, which may be incomplete, and subject to engineering and geological interpretation,
judgment and experience. Market price fluctuations of metals, as well as increased production costs or
reduced recovery rates may render ore reserves containing relatively lower grades of mineralization
uneconomic and may ultimately result in a restatement of reserves. Moreover, short-term operating
factors relating to the ore reserves, such as the need for orderly development of the ore bodies and the
processing of new or different ore grades may cause a mining operation to be unprofitable in any
particular accounting period. Should the Company encounter mineralization or geologic formations at
any of its mines different from those predicted adjustments of reserve estimates might occur, which
could alter mining plans. Either of these alternatives may adversely affect the Company’s actual
production and operating results.
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The mineral reserve and resource estimates contained or incorporated are only estimates and no
assurance can be given that any particular level of recovery of minerals will be realized or that an
identified reserve or resource will qualify as a commercially mineable (or viable) deposit which can be
legally and economically exploited. The Company relies on laboratory-based recovery models and
historical performance of its processing plant to project estimated ultimate recoveries by ore type at
optimal grind sizes. Actual recoveries in a commercial mining operation may exceed or fall short of
projected laboratory test results. In addition, the grade of mineralization ultimately mined may differ from
the one indicated by the drilling results and the difference may be material. There can be no assurance
that minerals recovered in small scale laboratory tests will be duplicated in large scale tests under on-site
conditions or in production scale operations and there can be no assurance that historical performance of
the process plant will continue in the future. Material changes, inaccuracies or reductions in proven and
probable reserves or resource estimates, grades, waste-to-ore ratios or recovery rates could have a
materially adverse impact on the Company’s future operations, cash flows, earnings, results of
operations, financial condition and the economic viability of projects. The estimated proven and probable
reserves and resources described herein should not be interpreted as assurances of mine life or of the
profitability of future operations.
The Company has engaged internal and expert independent technical consultants to advise it on, among
other things, mineral resources and reserves, metallurgy and project engineering. The Company believes
that these experts are competent and that they have carried out their work in accordance with all
internationally recognized industry standards. If, however, the work conducted by, and the mineral
resource and reserve estimates of these experts are ultimately found to be incorrect or inadequate in any
material respect, such events could materially and adversely affect the Company’s future operations,
cash flows, earnings, results of operations, financial condition and the economic viability of its projects.
The Company’s ability to sustain or increase present production levels depends in part on successful
exploration and development of new ore bodies and/or expansion of existing mining operations. Mineral
exploration, particularly for silver, involves many risks and is frequently unproductive. If mineralization is
discovered, it may take a number of years until production is possible, during which time the economic
viability of the project may change. Substantial expenditures are required to establish ore reserves,
extract metals from ores and, in the case of new properties, to construct mining and processing facilities
and infrastructure at any site chosen for mining. The economic feasibility of any development project is
based upon, among other things, estimates of the size and grade of ore reserves, proximity to
infrastructures and other resources (such as water and power), metallurgical recoveries, production
rates and capital and operating costs of such development projects, and metals prices. Development
projects are also subject to the completion of positive feasibility studies, issuance of necessary permits
and receipt of adequate financing, which may be difficult to obtain on terms reasonably acceptable to the
Company.
The Company’s future silver, copper, zinc and lead production may decline as a result of an exhaustion
of reserves and possible closure of work areas. It is the Company’s business strategy to conduct silver
exploratory activities at the Company’s existing mining operations as well as at new exploratory projects,
and to acquire silver mining properties and businesses or reserves that possess mineable ore reserves
and are expected to become operational in the near future. However, the Company can provide no
assurance that its future silver production will not decline. Accordingly, the Company’s revenues from
the sale of silver may decline, which may have a material adverse effect on its results of operations.
Government Regulation and Environmental Compliance
The Company is subject to significant governmental regulations, and costs and delays related to such
regulations may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business.
The Company’s mining activities are subject to extensive federal, state, local and foreign laws and
regulations governing environmental protection, natural resources, prospecting, development,
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production, post-closure reclamation, taxes, labour standards and occupational health and safety laws
and regulations including mine safety, toxic substances and other matters related to the Company’s
business. The costs associated with compliance with such laws and regulations could be substantial.
Possible future laws and regulations, or more restrictive interpretations of current laws and regulations
by governmental authorities could cause additional expense, capital expenditures, restrictions on or
suspensions of the Company’s operations and delays in the development of the Company’s properties.
Moreover, governmental authorities and private parties may bring lawsuits based upon damage to
property and injury to persons resulting from the environmental, health and safety impacts of the
Company’s past and current operations, which could lead to the imposition of substantial fines, penalties
and other civil and criminal sanctions. Substantial costs and liabilities, including for restoring the
environment after the closure of mines, are inherent in the Company’s operations. Although the
Company believes it is in substantial compliance with applicable laws and regulations, the Company can
give no assurance that any such law, regulation, enforcement or private claim will not have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations.
In the United States, some of the Company’s mining wastes are currently exempt to a limited extent
from the extensive set of federal Environmental Protection Agency (the “EPA”) regulations governing
hazardous waste under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (the “RCRA”). If the EPA
designates these wastes as hazardous under the RCRA, the Company would be required to expend
additional amounts on the handling of such wastes and to make significant expenditures to construct
hazardous waste disposal facilities. In addition, if any of these wastes causes contamination in or
damage to the environment at a mining facility, such facility may be designated as a “Superfund” site
under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (the “CERCLA”).
Under the CERCLA, any owner or operator of a Superfund site since the time of its contamination may
be held liable and may be forced to undertake extensive remedial clean-up action or to pay for the
government’s clean-up efforts. Additional regulations or requirements are also imposed upon the
Company’s tailings and waste disposal areas in Idaho under the federal Clean Water Act (the “CWA”).
Airborne emissions are subject to controls under air pollution statutes implementing the Clean Air Act in
Idaho. Compliance with the CERCLA, the CWA and state environmental laws could entail significant
costs, which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s operations.
In the context of environmental permits, including the approval of reclamation plans, the Company must
comply with standards and regulations, which entail significant costs and can entail significant delays.
Such costs and delays could have an adverse impact on the Company’s operations.
The Company’s mining operations are subject to environmental regulations promulgated by government
agencies from time to time. Specifically, the Company’s activities at the Galena Complex are subject to
regulation by the U.S. Department of Labor’s Mine Safety Health Administration and related regulations
under applicable legislation and the Company’s activities at the Cosalá Operations projects are subject
to regulation by SEMARNAT (defined below), the environmental protection agency of Mexico. Such
regulations can result in citations and orders which can entail significant costs or production interruptions
and have an adverse impact on the Company’s operations and profitability. SEMARNAT regulations
require that an environmental impact statement, known in Mexico as a MIA, be prepared by a third-party
contractor for submittal to SEMARNAT. Studies required to support the MIA include a detailed analysis
of the following areas: soil, water, vegetarian, wildlife, cultural resources and socio-economic impacts.
The Company must also provide proof of local community support for a project to gain final approval of
the MIA.
In the ordinary course of business, the Company is required to obtain or renew governmental permits for
the operation and expansion of existing mining operations or for the development, construction and
commencement of new mining operations. Obtaining or renewing the necessary governmental permits
is a complex and time-consuming process involving numerous jurisdictions, which often involves public
hearings and costly undertakings. The duration and success of the Company’s efforts to obtain or renew
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permits are contingent upon many variables not within our control including the interpretation of
applicable requirements implemented by the permitting authority. The Company may not be able to
obtain or renew permits that are necessary to its operations, or the cost to obtain or renew permits may
exceed what the Company believes it can recover from the property once in production. Any unexpected
delays or costs associated with the permitting process could delay the development or impede the
operation of a mine, which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s operations and
profitability.
Some of the Company’s Material Properties are Located in Mexico and are Subject to Changes in
Political and Economic Conditions and Regulations in that Country
In the past, Mexico has been subject to political instability, changes and uncertainties, which may cause
changes to existing governmental regulations affecting mineral exploration and mining activities. The
Company’s operations and properties are subject to a variety of governmental regulations including,
among others: regulations promulgated by the Mexican Department of Economy – Dirección General de
Minas, Mexico’s Secretary of Environment and Natural Resources (“SEMARNAT”); the Mexican Mining
Law; and the regulations of the Comisión National del Aqua with respect to water rights. Mexican
regulators have broad authority to shut down and/or levy fines against facilities that do not comply with
regulations or standards. The Company’s mineral exploration and mining activities in Mexico may be
adversely affected in varying degrees by changing government regulations relating to the mining industry
or shifts in political conditions that increase the costs related to the Company’s activities or maintenance
of its properties. Operations may also be affected in varying degrees by government regulations with
respect to restrictions on production, price controls, export controls, income taxes, and expropriation of
property, environmental legislation and mine safety. Mexico’s status as a developing country may make it
more difficult for the Company to obtain any required financing for its projects. The Mexican Government
is conducting a highly publicized crack down on the drug cartels, resulting in a loss of lives. The
operation has been unaffected by the conflict and is unlikely to be in the future. However, if the
government’s actions lead to civil unrest, the situation could change.
The Company is uncertain if all necessary permits will be maintained on acceptable terms or in a timely
manner. Future changes in applicable laws and regulations or changes in their enforcement or regulatory
interpretation could negatively impact current or planned exploration and development activities on its
Cosalá District properties, or in any other projects that the Company becomes involved with. Any failure to
comply with applicable laws and regulations or failure to obtain or maintain permits, even if inadvertent,
could result in the interruption of exploration and development operations or material fines, penalties or
other liabilities.
Substantially all of the Company's Assets are Located Outside of Canada, and Impact on
Enforcement of Civil Liabilities
It may be difficult or impossible to enforce judgements obtained in Canadian courts predicated upon
the civil liability provisions of the securities laws of certain provinces against the portion of the
Company's management and assets located outside of Canada.
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Employee Recruitment, Retention, Pension Funding and Labour Relations
Recruiting and retaining qualified personnel is critical to the Company’s success. The number of
persons skilled in acquisition, exploration and development of mining properties is limited and
competition for such persons is intense. As the Company’s business activity grows, the Company will
require additional key executive, financial, operational, administrative and mining personnel. Although
the Company believes that it will be successful in attracting, training and retaining qualified personnel,
there can be no assurance of such success. If the Company is not successful in attracting and training
qualified personnel, the efficiency of its operations could be affected, which could have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations and profitability. The Company strongly depends
on the business and technical expertise of its small group of management and key personnel. There is
little possibility that this dependence will decrease in the near term. Key man life insurance is not in
place on management and key personnel. If the services of the Company’s management and key
personnel were lost, it could have a material adverse effect on future operations.
The Company may experience labour disputes, work stoppages or other disruptions in production that
could adversely affect its operations. The Company also hires some of its employees or consultants
in Mexico to assist it in conducting its operations in accordance with Mexican laws. The Company
also purchases certain supplies and retains the services of various companies in Mexico to meet its
business plans. It may be difficult to find or hire qualified people in the mining industry who are situated
in Mexico or to obtain all the necessary services or expertise in Mexico or to conduct operations on its
projects at reasonable rates. If qualified people and services or expertise cannot be obtained in
Mexico, the Company may need to seek and obtain those services from people located outside
Mexico, which will require work permits and compliance with applicable laws and could result in
delays and higher costs to the Company to conduct its operations in Mexico.
The declines in the equity markets over the last several years and other financial impacts have affected
the Company’s costs and liquidity through increased requirements to fund the Company’s defined
benefit pension plans for its employees. There can be no assurance that financial markets will
sufficiently recover in the future with the effect of causing a corresponding reduction in the Company’s
future pension funding requirements. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that unforeseen changes
in pensioner longevity, government regulation or other financial market uncertainties will not cause
pension funding requirements to differ from the requirements projected by professional actuaries. The
Company intends to continue to fund its pension plan for hourly and salary employees of the Company
pursuant to all relevant regulatory requirements.
Mining Property and Title Risks
Third parties may dispute the Company’s mining claims, which could result in losses affecting the
Company’s business. The validity of unpatented mining claims, which constitute a significant portion of
the Company’s property holdings in Idaho, is often uncertain and may be contested. Although the
Company has attempted to acquire satisfactory title to undeveloped properties, the Company, in
accordance with mining industry practice, does not generally obtain title opinions until a decision is
made to develop a property. As a result, some titles, particularly titles to undeveloped properties, may be
defective. Defective title to any of the Company’s mining claims could result in litigation, insurance
claims, and potential losses affecting the Company’s business.
The validity of mining or exploration titles or claims, which constitute most of the Company’s property
holdings, can be uncertain and may be contested. No assurance can be given that applicable
governments will not revoke or significantly alter the conditions of the applicable exploration and mining
titles or claims and that such exploration and mining titles or claims, will not be challenged or impugned
by third parties. The Company has not conducted surveys of all the claims in which it holds direct or
indirect interests and therefore, the precise area and location of such claims may be in doubt. The
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Company’s properties may be subject to prior unregistered liens, agreements or transfers, native land
claims or undetected title defects.
In light of the DGRM's Resolution, and based on the survey work carried out by the Company's
independent contractors and its own personnel since the boundary discrepancy at El Cajón first became
known to the Company, there is a strong likelihood of a material change to the positions of the
boundaries of the concessions encompassing the Company's El Cajón mineral deposit. When any such
variation to the concessions boundaries is finally confirmed by the DGRM, the Company's management
expects that it may be necessary to prepare a revised mineral resource estimate based on the
confirmed boundaries, which will likely result in a significant reduction of the quantity of estimated
mineral resources compared to the Company's estimate disclosed in the Cosalá Technical Report.
Surface Rights and Access
The Company has reached various agreements for surface access and rights with certain local groups,
including, Ejidos for mining exploitation activities, including open pit mining, in the project area of Cosalá
Norte. In addition, the Company currently has formal agreements for surface access with all Ejidos on
whose land its exploration activities are being performed. These agreements are valid for several years
and are regularly reviewed in terms of the appropriate level of compensation for the level of work being
carried out. The Nuestra Señora process facility is located on land previously purchased by the Company
and is not exposed to disruptions by third party ownership claims.
For future activities the Company will need to negotiate with Ejido and non-Ejido members, as a group
and individually, to reach agreements for additional access and surface rights. Negotiations with Ejidos
can become time-consuming if demands for compensation become unreasonable. There can be no
guarantee that the Company will be able to negotiate satisfactory agreements with any such existing
members for such access and surface rights, and therefore it may be unable to carry out planned mining
activities. In addition, in circumstances where access is denied, or no agreement can be reached, the
Company may need to rely on the assistance of local officials or the courts in such jurisdiction, the
outcomes of which cannot be predicted with any certainty. The inability of the Company to secure surface
access or purchase required surface rights could materially and adversely affect the timing, cost or overall
ability of the Company to develop any mineral deposits it may locate.
Competition
Competition in the mining sector is intense. Mines have limited lives and as a result, the Company may
in the future seek to replace and expand its reserves through the acquisition of new properties. In
addition, there is a limited supply of desirable mineral lands available in areas where the Company
would consider conducting exploration and/or production activities. Because the Company faces strong
competition for new properties from other mining companies, some of which have greater financial
resources than it does, the Company may be unable to acquire attractive new mining properties on
terms that it considers acceptable. Competition in the mining business for limited sources of capital
could adversely affect the Company’s ability to acquire and develop suitable silver mines, gold mines,
silver developmental projects, gold developmental projects, silver producing companies, gold producing
companies or properties having significant exploration potential. As a result, there can be no assurance
that the Company’s acquisition and exploration plans will yield new mineral reserves to replace or
expand current mineral reserves.
Concentrate Sales Risks
The Company currently sells its concentrates under offtake contracts with a limited number of
counterparties. Based on past practice, and the quality of its concentrates, the Company expects to be
able to renew these contracts or find alternative purchasers for its concentrates, however there can be no
assurance that the existing contracts will be renewed or replaced on reasonable terms.
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The Company frequently sells its concentrates on the basis of receiving a sales advance when the
concentrates are delivered, with the advance based on market prices of metals at the time of the
advance. Final settlement of the sale is then made later, based on prevailing metals prices at that time. In
an environment of volatile metal prices, this can lead to negative cash adjustments, with amounts owing
to the purchaser, and such amounts could potentially be substantial. In volatile metal markets, the
Company may elect to fix the price of a concentrate sale at the time of initial delivery.
The Company is Subject to Currency Fluctuations that may Adversely Affect the Financial
Position of the Company
One of the Company’s primary operations are located in Mexico and many of its expenditures and
obligations are denominated in Mexican pesos. The Company maintains its principal office and raises its
equity financings in Canada, maintains cash accounts in both U.S. dollars and Canadian dollars and has
monetary assets and liabilities in Canadian dollars and Mexican pesos. As such, the Company’s results of
operations are subject to foreign currency fluctuation risks and such fluctuations may adversely affect the
financial position and results of the Company. The Company may, from time to time, employ derivative
financial instruments to manage exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.
Financing Risks
Should financing be sought in the future, there can be no assurances that the Company will be able to
obtain adequate funding or that the terms of such financing will be favourable. Failure to obtain
additional financing could result in delay or indefinite postponement of further exploration and
development of its projects and the possible loss of such properties. The Company has a limited history
of earnings, has never paid a dividend, and does not anticipate paying dividends in the near future.
The Company may Require Significant Capital Expenditures
Substantial expenditures will be required to maintain, develop and to continue with exploration at the
Company properties. In order to explore and develop these projects and properties, the Company may
be required to expend significant amounts for, among other things, geological, geochemical and
geophysical analysis, drilling, assaying, and, if warranted, mining and infrastructure feasibility studies.
The Company may not benefit from any of these investments if it is unable to identify commercially
exploitable mineralized material. If successful in identifying reserves, it will require significant additional
capital to construct facilities necessary to extract recoverable metal from those reserves.
The ability of the Company to achieve sufficient cash flows from internal sources and obtain necessary
funding depends upon a number of factors, including the state of the worldwide economy and the price
of silver, copper, zinc and lead. The Company may not be successful in achieving sufficient cash flows
from internal sources and obtaining the required financing for these or other purposes on terms that are
favourable to it or at all, in which case its ability to continue operating may be adversely affected. Failure
to achieve sufficient cash flows and obtain such additional financing could result in delay or indefinite
postponement of further exploration or potential development.
Risks Associated with the Company’s Business Objectives
The Company’s strategy to create shareholder value through the acquisition, exploration, advancement
and development of its mineral properties will be subject to substantive risk. While the Company may
seek to acquire additional mineral properties that are consistent with its business objectives, there can
be no assurance that the Company will be able to identify suitable additional mineral properties or, if it
does identify suitable properties, that it will have sufficient financial resources to acquire such properties
or that such properties will be available on terms acceptable to the Company or at all. Any partnership or
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joint venture agreements with respect to mineral properties that the Company enters into will be subject
to the typical risks associated with such agreements, including disagreement on how to develop, operate
or finance a property and contractual and legal remedies of the Company’s partners in the event of such
disagreement.
Absolute Assurance on Financial Statements
The Company prepares its financial statements in accordance with accounting policies and methods
prescribed by International Financial Reporting Standards. In the preparation of financial statements,
management may need to rely upon assumptions, make estimates or use their best judgment in
determining the financial condition of the Company. In order to have a reasonable level of assurance
that financial transactions are properly authorized, assets are safeguarded against unauthorized or
improper use and transactions are properly recorded and reported, the Company has implemented and
continues to analyze its internal control systems for financial reporting. Although the Company believes
that its financial reports and financial statements are prepared with reasonable safeguards to ensure
reliability, the Company cannot provide absolute assurance in that regard.
Conflicts of Interest
Certain of the Company’s directors and officers also serve as directors and/or officers of other
companies involved in natural resource exploration and development, and consequently there exists the
possibility for such directors and officers to have interests that conflict with the Company’s interests.
Situations may arise in connection with potential investments where the other interests of the
Company’s directors conflict with its interests. As such, conflicts of interest may arise that may influence
these persons in evaluating possible acquisitions or in generally acting on the Company’s behalf, as
they may pursue opportunities that would then be unavailable to the Company. In the event that the
Company’s directors are subject to conflicts of interest, there may be a material adverse effect on its
business.
Uninsured or Uninsurable Risks
In the course of exploration, development and production of mineral properties, several risks and, in
particular, unexpected or unusual geological or operating conditions, may occur. It is not always possible
to fully insure against such risks, and the Company may decide not to take out insurance against such
risks as a result of high premiums or other reasons. Should such liabilities arise they could reduce or
eliminate any future profitability and result in an increase in costs and a decline in value of the Common
Shares.
As of the date of this MD&A, the Company is not insured against environmental risks. Insurance against
environmental risks (including potential liability for pollution or other hazards as a result of the disposal
of waste products occurring from exploration and production) has not been generally available to
companies within the industry. Without such insurance, and if the Company becomes subject to
environmental liabilities, the payment of such liabilities would reduce or eliminate its available funds or
could exceed the funds the Company has to pay such liabilities and result in bankruptcy. Should the
Company be unable to fund fully the remedial cost of an environmental problem, it might be required to
enter into interim compliance measures pending completion of the required remedy.
Tax Considerations
Corporate profits in Mexico are taxed only by the Federal Government. During 2013, there were two
federal taxes in Mexico that applied to Scorpio’s operations in Mexico; corporate income tax and a
Flat Rate Business Tax (“IETU”). Mexican corporate income tax is calculated based on gross
revenue less deductions for all refining and smelting charges, direct operating costs, all head
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office general and administrative costs, and depreciation deductions. During 2013, the corporate
income tax rate in Mexico was 30%. The same rate of 30% is expected for 2014 and onwards with no
reduction to 28% in 2015 as previously contemplated. The IETU is a cash-based minimum tax that
applies in addition to the corporate income tax. This tax has been eliminated by the Mexican
Government as of January 1, 2014. The tax is applicable to the taxpayer’s net income from the (i)
sale of goods; (ii) performance of independent services; and (iii) lease of goods at the rate of 16.5%
during 2008, 17% during 2009, 17.5% during 2010, 2011 and 2013.
In late 2013, a new income Tax Law was enacted in Mexico (“Mexican Tax Reform”) which became
effective January 1, 2014. Key provisions of the Mexican Tax Reform that may affect the Company
consist of:









New 7.5% mining royalty. This royalty is deductible for tax purposes and is calculated as 7.5%
of a royalty base which is computed as taxable revenues (except interest and inflationary
adjustments), less allowable deductions for income tax purposes (except interest, inflationary
adjustment, depreciation and mining fees), less prospecting and exploration expenses for the
year;
New environmental duty of 0.5% of gross income arising from the sale of gold and silver;
Corporate income tax rate to remain at 30%, eliminating the scheduled reduction to 29% in
2014 and to 28% in 2015;
Elimination of the IETU
Elimination of the option for depreciation of capital assets on an accelerated basis;
Elimination of 100% deduction on exploration expenses for locating and quantifying new
deposits in pre-operating periods. These exploration costs will be amortized on a straightline basis over 10 years;
Reduction of deductibility for various employee fringe benefits; and imposes a 10% withholding
tax on dividends distributed to resident individuals or foreign residents (including foreign
corporations). According to the Mexico-Canada tax treaty, this dividend withholding tax rate may
be reduced to 5%.

The Company believes that, pursuant to Section 7874 of the United States Internal Revenue Code of
1986, even though U.S. Silver is organized as an Ontario corporation, U.S. Silver will be treated as a
U.S. domestic corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes. As a result, U.S. Silver will be subject
to U.S. federal income tax in the same manner as a corporation organized in the U.S. The Company
believes that U.S. Silver likely is a United States real property holding corporation, or "USRPHC", as
defined for United States federal income tax purposes. If U.S. Silver were classified as a USRPHC, any
gain from the sale or other disposition, including a redemption, of its common shares would be subject to
U.S. federal income taxation and U.S. Silver would be required to file a United States federal income tax
return. In such circumstances, the purchaser of such common shares would be required to withhold
from the purchase price an amount equal to 10% of the purchase price and remit such amount to the
U.S. Internal Revenue Service. In addition, since, as noted above, U.S. Silver is classified as a U.S.
domestic corporation, the gross amount of dividends paid by U.S. Silver will be subject to U.S.
withholding tax at the current rate of 5% under the Canada-United States Convention with Respect to
Taxes on Income and on Capital. U.S. Silver will only be eligible for foreign tax credits under the
Canadian Income Tax Act to the extent it has qualifying income from a source in the U.S. in the year any
U.S. tax or withholding tax is paid by or on behalf of U.S. Silver in respect of a gain on the sale or other
disposition of its common shares or a dividend paid on such shares. Any gain from the sale or other
disposition, including a redemption, of the common shares of U.S. Silver and dividends received on such
shares by U.S. Silver will likely not be treated as income sourced in the United States for these
purposes.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
Adoption of new accounting standards
The Company has adopted the following new standards effective January 1, 2014. These changes were
made in accordance with the applicable transitional provisions.
(i)

Levies imposed by governments

In May 2013, the IASB issued IFRIC 21 – Levies (“IFRIC 21”), an interpretation of IAS 37 – Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (“IAS 37”), on the accounting for levies imposed by
governments. IAS 37 sets out criteria for the recognition of a liability, one of which is the requirement for
the entity to have a present obligation as a result of a past activity or event (“obligating event”) described
in the relevant legislation that triggers the payment of the levy. IFRIC 21 is effective for annual periods
commencing on or after January 1, 2014. The adoption of IFRIC 21 did not have an impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.
(ii)

Recoverable amount disclosures

In May 2013, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 36 – Impairment of Assets (“amendments to IAS 36”).
The amendments to IAS 36 restrict the requirement to disclose the recoverable amount of an asset or
cash generating unit (“CGU”) to periods in which an impairment loss has been recognized or reversed.
The amendments also expand and clarify the disclosure requirements applicable when an asset or CGU’s
recoverable amount has been determined on the basis of fair value less cost of disposal. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014 and should be applied
retrospectively. See note 12 for disclosures on impairment of mining interests in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

Accounting standards issued but not yet applied
Management is evaluating the impact the adoption of the following new and revised standards and
amendments will have on the consolidated financial statements of the Company.
(i)

Financial instruments

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments - The standard was issued in its final version by the IASB in July 2014
bringing together the classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting phases of the
IASB’s project to replace IAS 39, “Financial instruments: recognition and measurement” (“IAS 39”). The
standard retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes two primary measurement
categories for financial assets: amortized cost and fair value. The mandatory effective date of IFRS 9
would be annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted. The
Company is assessing the impact of this Standard.
(ii)

Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers - The final standard on revenue from contracts with
customers was issued in May 2014 and is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2016 for public entities with early application not permitted. The standard covers principles
that an entity shall apply to report useful information to users of financial statements about the nature,
amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from a contract with a customer.
Entities have the option of using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach to adopt
the guidance. The Company is assessing the impact of this Standard.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments
and estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
The areas which require management to make significant judgments, estimates and assumptions in
determining carrying values include, but are not limited to:
(i)

Reserves and resources

Proven and probable reserves are the economically mineable parts of the Company’s measured and
indicated mineral resources. The Company estimates its proven and probable reserves and measured
and indicated and inferred mineral resources based on information compiled by appropriately qualified
persons. The information relating to the geological data on the size, depth and shape of the ore bodies
requires complex geological judgments to interpret the data. The estimation of future cash flows related to
proven and probable reserves is based upon factors such as estimates of foreign exchange rates,
commodity prices, future capital requirements and production costs along with geological assumptions
and judgments made in estimating the size, grade and recovery of the ore bodies.
Changes in the proven and probable reserves or measured, indicated and inferred mineral resources
estimates may impact the carrying value of mining properties and equipment, depletion and amortization,
impairment assessments and the timing of decommissioning provisions.
(ii)

Depletion and amortization

Mining properties are depleted using the unit-of-production method over a period not to exceed the
estimated life of the ore body based on estimated recoverable reserves.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated, net of residual value over their estimated useful life but do
not exceed the related estimated life of the mine based on estimated recoverable mineral reserves.
The calculation of the units of production rate, and therefore the annual depletion and amortization
expense, could be materially affected by changes in the underlying estimates. Changes in estimates can
be the result of actual future production differing from current forecasts of future production and
expansion of mineral reserves through exploration activities.
Significant judgment is involved in the determination of useful life and residual values for the computation
of depletion and amortization. No assurance can be given that actual useful lives and residual values will
not differ significantly from current assumptions.
(iii)

Decommissioning provision

The Company assesses its decommissioning provision on an annual basis or when new material
information becomes available. Mining and exploration activities are subject to various laws and
regulations governing the protection of the environment. In general, these laws and regulations are
continually changing and the Company has made, and intends to make in the future, expenditures to
comply with such laws and regulations. Accounting for decommissioning provision requires management
to make estimates of the time and future costs the Company will incur to complete the rehabilitation work
required to comply with existing laws and regulations at each mining operation. Also, future changes to
environmental laws and regulations could increase the extent of rehabilitation work required to be
performed by the Company. Increases in future costs could materially impact the amounts charged to
operations for decommissioning provision. The provision represents management’s best estimate of the
present value of the future decommissioning provision. The actual future expenditures may differ from the
amounts currently provided.
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(iv)

Share-based payments

The amount expensed for share-based compensation is based on the application of a
recognized option valuation formula, which is highly dependent on, amongst other things, the
expected volatility of the Company’s registered shares, estimated forfeitures, and the expected life
of the options. The Company uses an expected volatility rate for its shares based on past stock
trading data, adjusted for future expectations, and actual volatility may be significantly different.
The resulting value calculated is not necessarily the value that the holder of the option could receive in an
arm’s length transaction, given that there is no market for the options and they are not transferable. It is
management’s view that the value derived is highly subjective and dependent entirely upon the input
assumptions made.
(v)

Income taxes

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires an estimate of income taxes in each of the
jurisdictions in which the Company operates. The process involves an estimate of the Company’s current
tax exposure and an assessment of temporary differences resulting from differing treatment of items,
such as depletion and amortization, for tax and accounting purposes, and when they might reverse.
These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities that are included in the Company’s
consolidated statements of financial position.
An assessment is also made to determine the likelihood that the Company’s future tax assets will be
recovered from future taxable income. To the extent that recovery is not considered likely, the related tax
benefits are not recognized.
Judgment is required to continually assess changing tax interpretations, regulations and legislation, to
ensure liabilities are complete and to ensure assets, net of valuation allowances, are realizable. The
impact of different interpretations and applications could be material.
(vi)

Impairment of mining interests

Mining interests are reviewed and evaluated for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the asset may not be recoverable. Common
indicators of impairment in the mining industry include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

a significant deterioration in expected future commodity prices;
a significant adverse movement in foreign exchange rates;
a significant increase in production costs;
a large cost overrun during the development and construction of a new mine;
a significant increase in the expected cost of dismantling assets and restoring the site;
a significant reduction in the mineral content of ore reserves/resources;
serious mine accidents;
a significant increase in market interest rates; and
adverse changes in government regulations and environmental law, including a significant
increase in the taxes payable by the mine.

The recovery of amounts recorded for mining interests depends on the Company’s interpretation of its
interest in the underlying mineral claims based on existing regulations, the ability of the Company to
obtain the necessary financing to complete the development, and future profitable production or proceeds
from the disposition thereof. Management relies on the life-of-mine plans and comparable market
valuations in its assessments of economic recoverability and probability of future economic benefit.
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(vii)

Purchase price allocation

Business combinations require judgment and estimates to be made at the date of acquisition in relation to
identifying the acquirer, determining assets and liability fair values and the allocation of the purchase
consideration over the fair value of the assets and liabilities.
In respect of mining company combinations, such as the combination of U.S. Silver in December 2014,
excess purchase consideration is typically allocated to the mineral reserves and resources being
acquired. The estimate of reserves and resources is subject to assumptions relating to life of the mine
and may change when new information becomes available. Changes in reserves and resources as a
result of factors such as production costs, recovery rates, grade or reserves or commodity prices could
impact depreciation rates, asset carrying values and decommissioning provision. Changes in
assumptions over long-term commodity prices, market demand and supply, and economic and regulatory
climates could also impact the carrying value of assets, including goodwill.

Financial Instruments
At December 31, 2014, the Company had foreign exchange derivatives to buy 60 million Mexican pesos
extendable month to month at an exchange rate of 13.13 MXP/USD valued at approximately $4.6 million.
The spot rate at December 31, 2014 was 14.75 MXP/USD with the contracts having a value of
approximately $4.1 million. Accordingly, the Company recorded an unrealized loss of $0.5 million (2013:
nil) on these contracts. This impact would have no effect on the Company’s cash flows until the forward
contracts mature or the Company terminates the contract.

Capital Structure
The Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of common shares, where each common share
provides the holder with one vote. As at December 31, 2014, there were 336,057,650 common shares
issued and outstanding.
As at March 27, 2015, there were 336,057,650 common shares of the Company issued and outstanding
and 27,721,365 options outstanding which are exchangeable in common shares of the Comapny.
Adjusting for the share consolidation and merger, the number of common shares issuable on the exercise
of warrants is 38,757,377.

Controls and Procedures
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures ("DC&P")
and internal controls over financial reporting ("ICFR"), as those terms are defined in National Instrument
52‐109 ‐ Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings ("NI 52‐109").

The Company’s DC&P are designed to ensure that all important information about the Company,
including operating and financial activities, is communicated fully, accurately and in a timely way and that
they provide the Company with assurance that the financial reporting is accurate.
ICFR means a process by or under the supervision of the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief
Financial Officer (“CFO”) to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with IFRS.
As at December 31, 2014, the Company’s CEO and CFO have certified that the DC&P are effective and
that during the year ended December 31, 2014 the Company did not make any material changes in the
ICFR during the last quarter that materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect the
Company’s ICFR.
The internal controls are not expected to prevent and detect all misstatements due to error or fraud.
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Non-IFRS Measures: Cash Cost per Ounce
The Company reports the cash cost per ounce of silver produced, a non-IFRS measure, in accordance
with measures widely reported in the silver mining industry as a benchmark for performance
measurement. Management uses these measures internally to better assess performance trends and
understands that a number of investors, and others who follow the Company’s performance, also assess
performance in this manner.
These measures should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for measures of performance
prepared in accordance with IFRS. These measures do not have any standardized meaning and may
differ from methods used by other companies with similar descriptions. The method does not include
depletion, depreciation, exploration or corporate administrative costs and is therefore not directly
reconcilable to costs as reported under International Financial Reporting Standards.

Reconciliation of Consolidated Cash Cost per Ounce
2014
Direct mining costs ('000)
Smelting, refining and royalty expenses ('000)
Less by-product credits ('000)
Total cash costs ('000)
Divided by silver produced (oz)
Silver cash costs ($/oz)

$

$
$

2013

26,047 $
7,405
33,452
(19,802)
13,650 $
1,206,603
11.31 $

25,274
7,988
33,262
(21,096)
12,166
969,025
12.55

Reconciliation of Cosalá Cash Cost per Ounce
2014
Direct mining costs ('000)
Smelting, refining and royalty expenses ('000)
Less by-product credits ('000)
Total cash costs ('000)
Divided by silver produced (oz)
Silver cash costs ($/oz)

$

$
$

2013

25,393 $
7,340
32,733
(19,638)
13,095 $
1,177,639
11.12

$

Reconciliation of Galena Complex Cash Cost per Ounce
Since Dec 23
2014
Direct mining costs ('000)

$

Smelting, refining and royalty expenses ('000)

$

Divided by silver produced (oz)
Silver cash costs ($/oz)

$

$

30,373

2013
$

5,335
35,708

(164)
555 $
28,964
19.18

969,025
12.55

2014

65
719

Less by-product credits ('000)
Total cash costs ('000)
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654

25,274
7,988
33,262
(21,096)
12,166

$

5,342
47,312

(10,101)
25,607 $
1,621,765
15.79

41,970

$

(9,646)
37,666
2,120,824
17.76
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Reconciliation of Consolidated All-In Sustaining Cost per Ounce
2014
Total cash costs ('000)

$

13,650

2013
$

12,166

Capital expenditures ('000)

13,702

9,673

Exploration costs ('000)
Total all-in sustaining costs ('000)

$

12
27,365

$

21,839

$

1,206,603
22.68

$

969,025
22.54

Divided by silver produced (oz)
Silver cash costs ($/oz)

Reconciliation of Cosalá All-In Sustaining Cost per Ounce
2014
Total cash costs ('000)
Capital expenditures ('000)
Exploration costs ('000)
Total all-in sustaining costs ('000)
Divided by silver produced (oz)
Silver cash costs ($/oz)

$

13,095

$

13,606
26,701

$

1,177,639
22.67

2013
$

12,166

$

9,673
21,839

$

969,025
22.54

Reconciliation of Galena Complex All-In Sustaining Cost per Ounce
Since Dec 23
2014
Total cash costs ('000)
Capital expenditures ('000)
Exploration costs ('000)
Total all-in sustaining costs ('000)
Divided by silver produced (oz)
Silver cash costs ($/oz)
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$

$
$

555
96
12
664
28,964
22.91

$

$
$

2014
25,607
6,024
862
32,493
1,621,765
20.04

2013
$

$
$

37,666
12,105
1,635
51,406
2,120,824
24.24
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MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management and are in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as
outlined in Part I of the Chartered Professional Accountants Canada Handbook. Other information contained in this
document has also been prepared by management and is consistent with the data contained in the consolidated
financial statements. A system of internal control has been developed and is maintained by management to
provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and financial information is accurate and reliable.
The Board of Directors approves the financial statements and ensures that management discharges its financial
reporting responsibilities. The Board’s review is accomplished principally through the audit committee, which is
composed of non-executive directors. The audit committee meets periodically with management and the auditors
to review financial reporting and control matters.
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Deloitte LLP and their report outlines the scope of their
examination and gives their opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

(Signed) Darren Blasutti
President & Chief Executive Officer
Toronto, Ontario, Canada
March 27, 2015
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(Signed) Warren Varga
Chief Financial Officer

Deloitte LLP
Brookfield Place
181 Bay Street
Suite 1400
Toronto ON M5J 2V1
Canada
Tel: 416-601-6150
Fax: 416-601-6610
www.deloitte.ca

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Shareholders of Scorpio Mining Corporation
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Scorpio Mining Corporation, which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2014, December 31, 2013 and January 1, 2013, and the
consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss, consolidated statements of changes in equity, and consolidated
statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Scorpio
Mining Corporation as at December 31, 2014, December 31, 2013 and January 1, 2013 and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards.

Chartered Professional Accountants, Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants
March 27, 2015
37 Scorpio Mining Corporation 2014 Annual Report

Scorpio Mining Corporation

Consolidated statements of financial position
(In thousands of U.S. dollars)

As at
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables (Note 8)
Income tax receivable
Inventories (Note 9)
Prepaid expenses
Investment in Scorpio Gold (Note 10)
Non-current assets
Restricted cash
Long-term investments
Property, plant and equipment (Note 11)
Deferred tax assets (Note 19)
Total assets

December 31,
2014

December 31,
2013
(Note 3c)

$

$

$

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Derivative liability (Note 7)
Advance on mining concession sales
Credit facility (Note 13)

$

Non-current liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Credit facility (Note 13)
Post-employment benefit obligations (Note 14)
Decommissioning provision (Note 15)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 19)
Total liabilities

368
32
81,253
118,588

13,070
502
87
2,155
15,814

$

$

559
5,592
5,181
4,832
1,271
33,249

Equity
Share capital (Note 16)
Equity reserve
Foreign currency translation reserve
Changes in available-for-sale investment in Scorpio Gold
Deficit
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interest
Total equity
$

Total liabilities and equity

15,224
6,768
236
12,353
699
1,655
36,935

2,608
2,608

$

$

23,715
8,288
7,050
548
7,491
47,092
90,374
10,838
148,304

2,201
2,201
1,666
3,867

179,897
26,450
7,974
307
(129,299)
85,329

153,778
23,588
8,399
275
(50,604)
135,436

153,686
22,900
10,054
(529)
(41,684)
144,427

10
85,339

10
135,446

10
144,437

118,588

$

APPROVED BY THE BOARD
(Signed) Gordon Pridham
Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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92,453
11,088
139,831

$

1,777
4,385

Contingencies (Note 23)

(Signed) Brad Kipp
Director

15,437
9,294
8,466
598
2,495
36,290

January 1,
2013
(Note 3c)

139,831

$

148,304

Scorpio Mining Corporation

Consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss
For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except share and per share amounts)

2014

Revenue

$

31,479

2013
(Note 3c)
$

30,213

Cost of sales
Depletion and amortization
Corporate general and administrative (Note 18)
Exploration costs
Accretion on decommissioning provision (Note 15)
Interest income
Foreign exchange loss
Unrealized loss on derivative liability (Note 7)
Impairment of mining interests (Note 12)
Impairment of investment in Scorpio Gold (Note 10)
Loss before income taxes
Income tax recovery (expense) (Note 19)

(26,135)
(11,008)
(5,364)
(12)
(101)
86
(397)
(502)
(53,268)
(722)
(65,944)
(12,751)

(23,548)
(6,484)
(2,919)
(89)
153
(350)
(1,068)
(5,318)
(9,410)
490

Net loss attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company

(78,695)

(8,920)

(425)

(1,655)

32
(393)
(79,088)

804
(851)
(9,771)

Other comprehensive income (loss)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Foreign currency translation reserve
Change in fair value of available-for-sale securities
of Scorpio Gold (net of tax)
Other comprehensive loss
Comprehensive loss
Loss per share
Basic and diluted
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding
Basic and diluted (Note 17)

$

(0.39)
201,601,926

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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$

(0.04)
198,517,680

Scorpio Mining Corporation

Consolidated statements of changes in equity
For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except share amounts)

Equity Foreign currency
reserve translation reserve

Share capital
Shares (000s)
Amount
Balance at January 1, 2013 (Note 3c)
Net loss for the period
Translation adjustment
Share-based payments
Exercise of stock options
Change in fair value of investment in Scorpio Gold
Reclassification of losses recorded in
statement of operations (Note 10)
Balance at December 31, 2013

198,389
200
-

$

153,778

Balance at January 1, 2014
Net loss for the period
Translation adjustment
Share-based payments
Shares issued, options and warrants exchanged on
acquisition of U.S. Silver & Gold Inc. (Note 6)
Change in fair value of investment in Scorpio Gold
Reclassification of losses recorded in
statement of operations (Note 10)
Balance at December 31, 2014

198,589 $
-

153,778
-

198,589

$

137,469
336,058 $

153,686
92
-

$

$

$

26,119
179,897

22,900 $
723
(35)
23,588

23,588
206

$

$

2,656
$

26,450

Changes in fair
value of availablefor-sale investment
in Scorpio Gold

10,054 $
(1,655)
8,399

$

(529) $
(4,514)

$

5,318
275

8,399 $
(425)
-

275
-

7,974

(690)
$

722
307

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

40 Scorpio Mining Corporation 2014 Annual Report

Deficit

$

$

Non-controlling
interest

(41,684) $
(8,920)
-

10
-

(50,604) $

10

(50,604) $
(78,695)
-

10
-

$ (129,299) $

Total
equity
$

$

$

10

144,437
(8,920)
(1,655)
723
57
(4,514)
5,318
135,446

135,446
(78,695)
(425)
206
28,775
(690)

$

722
85,339

Scorpio Mining Corporation

Consolidated statements of cash flows
For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands of U.S. dollars)

2014

2013
(Note 3c)

Cash flow provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Net loss for the year
Adjustments for:
Depletion and amortization
Deferred income tax expense (recovery)
Accretion on decommissioning provision
Share-based payments
Unrealized gain on long-term investments
Unrealized loss on derivative liability (Note 7)
Non-cash impact of other long-term liabilities
Non-cash impact of credit facility
Non-cash impact of post-employment benefit obligations
Impairment of mining interests (Note 12)
Impairment of investment in Scorpio Gold (Note 10)

$

Changes in items of working capital:
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Trade and other payables
Net cash generated from operating activities
Investing activities
Expenditures on property, plant and equipment
Advance on mining concession sales
Acquisition of U.S. Silver & Gold Inc. (Note 6)
Net cash used in investing activities

(78,695)

$

(8,920)

11,008
12,364
101
206
(9)
502
(9)
19
20
53,268
722
(503)

6,484
(250)
89
723
1,068
5,318
4,512

5,674
131
395
4,696
10,393

(937)
(1,416)
(119)
406
2,446

(14,495)
87
4,299
(10,109)

(9,608)
(9,608)

Financing activities
Margin call on foreign exchange derivatives (Note 7)
Issue of common shares for cash
Net cash generated from (used in) financing activities

(217)
(217)

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash

(280)

(1,173)

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents

(213)

(8,278)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash
Term deposits

$

$
$

15,437
15,224

10,336
4,888
15,224

57
57

$

$
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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23,715
15,437

5,347
10,090
15,437

Scorpio Mining Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information
Scorpio Mining Corporation (the “Company" or "Scorpio Mining") was incorporated under the Canada Business
Corporations Act on May 12, 1998 and conducts mining exploration, development and production in the Americas.
The merger of the Company and U.S. Silver & Gold Inc. (“U.S. Silver”) was completed on December 23, 2014
pursuant to a plan of arrangement under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario). The address of the Company’s
registered office is 145 King Street West, Suite 2870, Toronto, Ontario, Canada, M5H 1J8.
The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2014 were approved and
authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on March 26, 2015.
2. Basis of presentation
The Company prepares its consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and IFRS Interpretations
Committee (“IFRIC”) which the Canadian Accounting Standards Board has approved for incorporation into Part I of
the Chartered Professional Accountants Canada Handbook. These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost method, except for certain financial instruments measured at fair value. The
Company has consistently applied the accounting policies used in preparation of these consolidated financial
statements throughout all the periods presented with the exception of the change in presentation currency outlined
in note 3c. Critical accounting judgments and estimates used by management in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are presented in note 4.
3. Summary of significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are as
follows:
a. Consolidation
These consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and the entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries, including special purpose entities). Control exists when the Company
has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. All intercompany transactions
and balances, income and expenses have been eliminated.
The Company applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Company elects on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis whether to measure noncontrolling interest at its fair value, or at its proportionate share of the recognized amount of identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of
the consideration transferred and the fair value of non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognized immediately in profit
or loss.
Non-controlling interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the Company’s
equity. Non-controlling interest consists of the non-controlling interest at the date of the original business
combination plus the non-controlling interest’s share of changes in equity since the date of acquisition.
Special Purpose Entities (“SPE’s”) as defined by the IASB in SIC 12 Consolidation–Special Purpose Entities are
entities which are created to accomplish a narrow and well-defined objective (e.g. to provide services to the
operating entity). SPE’s are subject to consolidation when there is an indication that the other entity controls the
SPE. The Company has determined that it controls certain SPE’s relating to service companies at its Mexican
operations (4246136 Canada Inc., Servicios Especializados en Minas S.A. de C.V., Triturados Mineros del
Noroeste S.A. de C.V. and Servicios Generales en Mineria S.A. de C.V.) and the accounts of those SPE’s are
consolidated with those of the Company.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, unless otherwise stated)

b. Segment reporting
An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the
Company’s other components. Determination of operating segments are based on the reports reviewed by the
chief operating decision makers that are used to make strategic decisions about resources to be allocated to the
segment and performance assessment, and for which discrete financial information is available. Unallocated items
not directly attributable to a segment comprise mainly of corporate assets and head office expenses.
c. Presentation currency and functional currency
The Company’s presentation currency is the U.S. dollar (“USD”). The functional currency of the Company’s
Canadian subsidiaries is the Canadian dollar (“CAD”), and the functional currency of its U.S., Mexican and British
Virgin Island’s subsidiaries and SPE’s is the USD. The consolidated financial statements of the Company are
translated into the presentation currency. Assets and liabilities have been translated using the exchange rate at
period end, and income, expenses and cash flow items are translated using the rate that approximates the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions (the average rate for the period). All resulting exchange differences
are recorded in the foreign currency translation reserve.
For the year ended December 31, 2014, the presentation currency of the Company changed from CAD to USD.
The change in presentation currency is to better reflect the Company’s business activities as all of the Company’s
revenue and a significant portion of its mine operating costs from its mineral resource properties in Mexico and the
United States are denominated in USD and to improve investors’ ability to compare the Company’s financial results
with other publicly traded businesses in the international mining industry. Comparative financial statements and
numbers for periods prior to January 1, 2014 are represented in USD.
d. Foreign currency translations
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the entities’ functional currency at the exchange rate at the
date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities of the Company’s operations denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency are translated at the rate in effect at the statement of financial position date, and
non-monetary items at historic exchange rates at each transaction date. Revenue and expense items are translated
at average exchange rates of the reporting period. Gains and losses on translation are charged to the statements of
loss and comprehensive loss.
e. Revenue recognition
The following specific conditions must be met before revenue is recognized:





the title, specific risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the purchaser;
the Company does not retain continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership or effective control over the concentrate sold;
the amount of revenue and costs can be measured reliably; and
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company.

The Company’s sales of concentrates are made under provisional pricing arrangements where the final sale prices
are determined by quoted market prices in a period subsequent to the date of sale. In these circumstances,
revenue from sales is recorded at the time of sale based on forward prices for the expected date of final settlement.
Subsequent variations in prices and metal quantities are recognized as revenue adjustments as they occur.
Revenue includes treatment and selling costs if payment of those amounts is enforced at the time of sale.
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f. Defined benefit plans
The cost of defined benefit plans is determined using the projected unit credit method. The related pension liability
recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position is the present value of the defined benefit obligation
at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets.
Actuarial valuations for defined benefit plans are carried out annually. The discount rate applied in arriving at the
present value of the pension liability represents the yield on high quality corporate bonds denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related
pension liability.
Actuarial gains and losses arise from the difference between the actual long-term rate of return on plan assets for a
period and the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets for that period, or from changes in actuarial
assumptions used to determine the accrued benefit obligation. Actuarial gains and losses arising in the year are
recognized in full in the period in which they occur, in other comprehensive income (loss) and retained earnings
without recycling to the consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive loss in subsequent periods.
Current service cost, the recognized element of any past service cost, interest expense arising on the pension
liability and the expected return on plan assets are recognized in the same line items in the consolidated statement
of loss and comprehensive loss as the related compensation cost.
The values attributed to plan liabilities are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified
actuaries. Service costs arising from plan amendments are recognized immediately.
g. Share-based payments
The Company’s stock option plan allows its employees (including directors and officers) and non-employees to
acquire shares of the Company. Accordingly, the fair value of the option is either charged to operations or
capitalized to exploration or development expenditures, depending on the accounting for the optionee’s other
compensation, with a corresponding increase in equity reserve.
The costs of equity-settled transactions with employees are measured by reference to the fair value at the date on
which they are granted using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model.
The costs of equity-settled transactions are recognized, together with a corresponding increase in equity reserve,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the
relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (the “vesting date”). The cumulative expense recognized for
equity-settled transactions at each reporting date up to the vesting date reflects the Company’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit for a period represents the movement in
cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period and the corresponding amount is
represented in equity reserve. No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest.
Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognized is the expense as if the
terms had not been modified. An additional expense is recognized for any modification which increases the total fair
value of the share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date
of modification.
h. Income taxes
Income tax comprises of current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in the consolidated statement of loss
and comprehensive loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive
income (loss) or directly in equity, in which case the income tax is also recognized directly in other comprehensive
income (loss) or equity, respectively.
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The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries operate and generate taxable profit.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
Deferred income tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the consolidated statement of financial position date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses to the extent it is probable future taxable profits will be available against which they
can be utilized.
The Company did not recognize any deferred income taxes relating to its investments in subsidiaries.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Company has the legal right and intent to offset.
i. Earnings/loss per share
Basic earnings/loss per share is calculated by dividing the net earnings/loss for the period attributable to equity
owners of the Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted earnings/loss per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
for dilutive instruments. The number of shares included with respect to options, warrants and similar instruments is
computed using the treasury stock method. The treasury stock method, which assumes that outstanding stock options
and warrants with an average exercise price below the market price of the underlying shares, are exercised and the
assumed proceeds are used to repurchase common shares of the Company at the average market price of the common
shares for the period. The Company’s potentially dilutive common shares comprise stock options granted to employees,
and warrants.
j. Comprehensive income (loss)
Comprehensive income (loss) is the change in the Company’s net assets that results from transactions, events and
circumstances from sources other than the Company’s shareholders and includes items that would not normally be
included in net earnings such as foreign currency gains or losses related to the Company’s net investment in
foreign operations and unrealized gains or losses on available-for-sale securities net of tax. The Company’s
comprehensive income (loss), components of other comprehensive income and cumulative translation adjustments
are presented in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss) and the consolidated statements of
changes in equity.
k. Inventories
Concentrates, ore stockpile, and spare parts and supplies are valued at the lower of average cost and estimated
net realizable value. Cost includes all direct costs incurred in production including direct labour and materials,
freight, depreciation and amortization and directly attributable overhead costs. Net realizable value is calculated as
the estimated price at the time of sale based on prevailing and future metal prices less estimated future production
costs to convert inventories into saleable form.
Any write-downs of inventory to net realizable value are recorded as cost of sales. If there is a subsequent increase
in the value of inventories, the previous write-downs to net realizable value are reversed to the extent that the
related inventory has not been sold.
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Ore stockpile represents ore that has been extracted from the mine and is available for further processing. Costs
added to ore stockpile are valued based on current mining cost per tonne incurred up to the point of stockpiling the
ore and are removed at the average cost per tonne. Ore stockpile is verified by periodic surveys and physical
counts.
Materials and supplies inventory are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value, where cost is determined
using the first-in-first-out method. Any provision for obsolescence is determined by reference to specific items of
stock. A regular review is undertaken to determine the extent of any provision for obsolescence by comparing those
items to their net realizable value. If carrying value exceeds net realizable value, a write-down is recognized.
l. Investments
An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.
Investments in companies over which the Company exercises neither control nor significant influence and are
designated as available-for sale financial instruments are recorded at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on
available-for-sale financial instruments are recognized in other comprehensive income (loss), unless the decrease
in value is significant or prolonged, in which case, the loss is recorded in the statements of loss and comprehensive
loss.
m. Property, plant and equipment
(i)

Producing mining interests

Producing mining interests are carried at cost less accumulated depletion and amortization and accumulated
impairment losses. Following the completion of commissioning, the costs related to the mining interests are
depleted and charged to operations on the unit of production method as a proportion of estimated recoverable
mineral reserves.
Completion of the commissioning is deemed to have occurred when major mine and processing plant components
are completed, operating results are being achieved consistently for a period of time and that there are indicators
that these operational results, including mill capacity and recovery, will be sustainable in the future.
Construction in progress is not depreciated until the assets are ready for their intended use.
(ii)

Non-producing mining interests

The Company follows the method of accounting for its non-producing mining interests whereby all costs, net of
incidental revenues, relating to the acquisition, exploration and development are deferred and capitalized by
property until the property to which they directly relate is placed into production, sold, discontinued or subject to a
condition of impairment.
In the event that a mining interest is placed into production, capitalization of costs ceases, the costs are transferred
to producing mining interests and the mining interest is depleted on a unit of production basis. The recoverability of
amounts is dependent upon the discovery of economically recoverable mineral reserves, the ability of the Company
to finance the development of the properties, and on the future profitable production or proceeds from the
disposition thereof.
(iii)

Plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate assets (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
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The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the
item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within that part will flow to the Company, and its
cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. Repairs and maintenance
are charged to the consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive loss during the period in which they are
incurred.
The amortization methods, useful life and residual values of plant and equipment are assessed annually and
adjusted where required.
Residual values, method of amortization and useful lives of the assets are reviewed annually and adjusted if
appropriate.
(iv)

Impairment of mining interests

The Company reviews and evaluates the carrying values of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is an indication of impairment. For exploration and evaluation assets, indication includes but is not limited to
expiration of the right to explore, substantive expenditure in the specific area is neither budgeted nor planned, and if
the entity has decided to discontinue exploration activity in the specific area.
When the carrying value of assets exceeds the recoverable amount, the carrying value of the assets is reduced to
the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use of the asset. To achieve this, the recoverable
amount is the higher of value in use (being the net present value of expected pre-tax future cash flows of the
relevant asset) and fair value less costs to sell the asset.
If, after the Company has previously recognized an impairment loss, circumstances indicate that the recoverable
amount of the impaired assets is greater than the carrying amount, the Company reverses the impairment loss by
the amount the revised fair value exceeds its carrying amount, to a maximum of the previous impairment loss. In no
case shall the revised carrying amount exceed the original carrying amount, after depreciation or amortization, that
would have been determined if no impairment loss had been recognized.
n. Decommissioning provision
The Company recognizes contractual, statutory and legal obligations associated with retirement of mining
properties when those obligations result from the acquisition, construction, development or normal operation of the
assets. Initially, the decommissioning provision is recognized at its fair value in the period in which it is incurred.
Upon initial recognition of the liability, the corresponding decommissioning provision is added to the carrying
amount of that asset and the cost is amortized as an expense over the economic life of the related asset. Following
the initial recognition of the decommissioning provision, the periodic unwinding of the discount is recognized in the
consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive loss and adjusted for changes to the amount or timing of the
underlying cash flows to settle the obligation.
o. Financial instruments
The Company classifies its financial instruments into one of the following categories: fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”) (assets and liabilities), assets available-for-sale, loans and receivables, assets held-to-maturity and other
financial liabilities. All financial instruments are measured at fair value on initial recognition.
Financial assets and liabilities designated as FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognized in net earnings. Financial assets designated as “available-for-sale” are subsequently measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax. Transaction costs
for FVTPL financial assets and liabilities are recognized in income when incurred.
Financial assets designated as “loans and receivables” or “held-to-maturity”, and financial liabilities designated as
“other financial liabilities” are recorded at amortized cost. Transaction costs from loans and receivables and other
financial liabilities offset the carrying amount of the related financial assets or liabilities.
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The Company has classified cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables as “loans and
receivables”, trade and other payables are classified as “other financial liabilities”, and investment in Scorpio Gold
shares as “available-for-sale”.
p. Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalized as part of the cost of that asset and amortized over the expected useful life of that asset. Other
borrowing costs not directly attributable to a qualifying asset are expensed in the period incurred.
q. Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) that has arisen as a
result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.
r. Related party transactions
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common significant influence, and related parties
may be individuals or corporate entities. A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction when there is
a transfer of resources or obligations between related parties. Related party transactions that are in the normal
course of business and have commercial substance are measured at the exchange amount.
s. Non-controlling interests
Non-controlling interests exist in less than wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company and represent the outside
interests’ share of the carrying values of the subsidiaries. When the subsidiary company issues its own shares to
outside interests, a dilution gain or loss arises as a result of the difference between the Company’s share of the
proceeds and the carrying value of the underlying equity.
4. Significant accounting judgments and estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments and
estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
The areas which require management to make significant judgments, estimates and assumptions in determining
carrying values include, but are not limited to:
(i)

Reserves and resources

Proven and probable reserves are the economically mineable parts of the Company’s measured and indicated
mineral resources. The Company estimates its proven and probable reserves and measured and indicated and
inferred mineral resources based on information compiled by appropriately qualified persons. The information
relating to the geological data on the size, depth and shape of the ore bodies requires complex geological
judgments to interpret the data. The estimation of future cash flows related to proven and probable reserves is
based upon factors such as estimates of foreign exchange rates, commodity prices, future capital requirements and
production costs along with geological assumptions and judgments made in estimating the size, grade and recovery
of the ore bodies.
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Changes in the proven and probable reserves or measured, indicated and inferred mineral resources estimates
may impact the carrying value of mining properties and equipment, depletion and amortization, impairment
assessments and the timing of decommissioning provisions.
(ii)

Depletion and amortization

Mining properties are depleted using the unit-of-production method over a period not to exceed the estimated life of
the ore body based on estimated recoverable reserves.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated, net of residual value over their estimated useful life but do not
exceed the related estimated life of the mine based on estimated recoverable mineral reserves.
The calculation of the units of production rate, and therefore the annual depletion and amortization expense, could
be materially affected by changes in the underlying estimates. Changes in estimates can be the result of actual
future production differing from current forecasts of future production and expansion of mineral reserves through
exploration activities.
Significant judgment is involved in the determination of useful life and residual values for the computation of
depletion and amortization. No assurance can be given that actual useful lives and residual values will not differ
significantly from current assumptions.
(iii)

Decommissioning provision

The Company assesses its decommissioning provision on an annual basis or when new material information
becomes available. Mining and exploration activities are subject to various laws and regulations governing the
protection of the environment. In general, these laws and regulations are continually changing and the Company
has made, and intends to make in the future, expenditures to comply with such laws and regulations. Accounting for
decommissioning provision requires management to make estimates of the time and future costs the Company will
incur to complete the rehabilitation work required to comply with existing laws and regulations at each mining
operation. Also, future changes to environmental laws and regulations could increase the extent of rehabilitation
work required to be performed by the Company. Increases in future costs could materially impact the amounts
charged to operations for decommissioning provision. The provision represents management’s best estimate of the
present value of the future decommissioning provision. The actual future expenditures may differ from the amounts
currently provided.
(iv)

Share-based payments

The amount expensed for share-based compensation is based on the application of a recognized option
valuation formula, which is highly dependent on, amongst other things, the expected volatility of the
Company’s registered shares, estimated forfeitures, and the expected life of the options. The Company uses
an expected volatility rate for its shares based on past stock trading data, adjusted for future expectations,
and actual volatility may be significantly different.
The resulting value calculated is not necessarily the value that the holder of the option could receive in an arm’s
length transaction, given that there is no market for the options and they are not transferable. It is management’s
view that the value derived is highly subjective and dependent entirely upon the input assumptions made.
(v)

Income taxes

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires an estimate of income taxes in each of the
jurisdictions in which the Company operates. The process involves an estimate of the Company’s current tax
exposure and an assessment of temporary differences resulting from differing treatment of items, such as depletion
and amortization, for tax and accounting purposes, and when they might reverse.
These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities that are included in the Company’s consolidated
statements of financial position.

49 Scorpio Mining Corporation 2014 Annual Report

Scorpio Mining Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, unless otherwise stated)

An assessment is also made to determine the likelihood that the Company’s future tax assets will be recovered
from future taxable income. To the extent that recovery is not considered likely, the related tax benefits are not
recognized.
Judgment is required to continually assess changing tax interpretations, regulations and legislation, to ensure
liabilities are complete and to ensure assets, net of valuation allowances, are realizable. The impact of different
interpretations and applications could be material.
(vi)

Impairment of mining interests

Mining interests are reviewed and evaluated for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of the asset may not be recoverable. Common indicators of impairment in the
mining industry include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

a significant deterioration in expected future commodity prices;
a significant adverse movement in foreign exchange rates;
a significant increase in production costs;
a large cost overrun during the development and construction of a new mine;
a significant increase in the expected cost of dismantling assets and restoring the site;
a significant reduction in the mineral content of ore reserves/resources;
serious mine accidents;
a significant increase in market interest rates; and
adverse changes in government regulations and environmental law, including a significant increase in the
taxes payable by the mine.

The recovery of amounts recorded for mining interests depends on the Company’s interpretation of its interest in
the underlying mineral claims based on existing regulations, the ability of the Company to obtain the necessary
financing to complete the development, and future profitable production or proceeds from the disposition thereof.
Management relies on the life-of-mine plans and comparable market valuations in its assessments of economic
recoverability and probability of future economic benefit.
(vii)

Purchase price allocation

Business combinations require judgment and estimates to be made at the date of acquisition in relation to
identifying the acquirer, determining assets and liability fair values and the allocation of the purchase consideration
over the fair value of the assets and liabilities.
In respect of mining company combinations, such as the combination of U.S. Silver in December 2014, excess
purchase consideration is typically allocated to the mineral reserves and resources being acquired. The estimate of
reserves and resources is subject to assumptions relating to life of the mine and may change when new information
becomes available. Changes in reserves and resources as a result of factors such as production costs, recovery
rates, grade or reserves or commodity prices could impact depreciation rates, asset carrying values and
decommissioning provision. Changes in assumptions over long-term commodity prices, market demand and
supply, and economic and regulatory climates could also impact the carrying value of assets, including goodwill.
5. Changes in accounting policies and recent accounting pronouncements
The Company has adopted the following new standards effective January 1, 2014. These changes were made in
accordance with the applicable transitional provisions:
(i)

Levies imposed by governments

In May 2013, the IASB issued IFRIC 21 – Levies (“IFRIC 21”), an interpretation of IAS 37 – Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets (“IAS 37”), on the accounting for levies imposed by governments. IAS 37 sets out
criteria for the recognition of a liability, one of which is the requirement for the entity to have a present obligation as
a result of a past activity or event (“obligating event”) described in the relevant legislation that triggers the payment
of the levy. IFRIC 21 is effective for annual periods commencing on or after January 1, 2014. The adoption of IFRIC
21 did not have an impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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(ii)

Recoverable amount disclosures

In May 2013, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 36 – Impairment of Assets (“amendments to IAS 36”). The
amendments to IAS 36 restrict the requirement to disclose the recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating
unit (“CGU”) to periods in which an impairment loss has been recognized or reversed. The amendments also
expand and clarify the disclosure requirements applicable when an asset or CGU’s recoverable amount has been
determined on the basis of fair value less cost of disposal. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2014 and should be applied retrospectively. See note 12 for disclosures on
impairment of mining interests in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
The following are future changes in accounting policies not yet effective as at December 31, 2014:
(i)

Financial instruments

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments - The standard was issued in its final version by the IASB in July 2014 bringing
together the classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting phases of the IASB’s project to
replace IAS 39, “Financial instruments: recognition and measurement” (“IAS 39”). The standard retains but
simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes two primary measurement categories for financial assets:
amortized cost and fair value. The mandatory effective date of IFRS 9 would be annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted. The Company is assessing the impact of this Standard.
(ii)

Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers - The final standard on revenue from contracts with customers
was issued in May 2014 and is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016 for public
entities with early application not permitted. The standard covers principles that an entity shall apply to report useful
information to users of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows arising from a contract with a customer. Entities have the option of using either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach to adopt the guidance. The Company is assessing the impact of this Standard.
6. Acquisition of U.S. Silver & Gold Inc.
On December 23, 2014, the Company obtained control and completed the acquisition of U.S. Silver via a plan of
arrangement under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario). The merger was completed by the Company acquiring
all of the outstanding common shares of U.S. Silver and exchanging each outstanding U.S. Silver common share
for 1.68 common shares of the Company. Outstanding U.S. Silver options were exchanged for options of the
Company and outstanding U.S. Silver warrants became exercisable for warrants of the Company under the same
exchange ratio.
The merger has been accounted for as a business combination with the Company identified as the acquirer for
accounting purposes.
The consideration paid is calculated as follows:

Non-diluted U.S. Silver common shares outstanding, December 23, 2014
Implicit share exchange ratio
Scorpio Mining common shares to be exchanged for U.S. Silver common shares
Scorpio Mining common share price, December 23, 2014 (USD)
Total common share consideration
Consideration of U.S. Silver options exchanged for Scorpio Mining options
Consideration of U.S. Silver warrants exercisable for Scorpio Mining common shares
Total consideration

81,826,629
1.68
137,468,737
0.19
26,119
263
2,393
$
28,775

For the purpose of these financial statements, the purchase consideration has been allocated on a preliminary
basis to the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on management’s best estimates and taking
into account all available information at the time of the acquisition as well as applicable information at the time
these consolidated financial statements were prepared. Due to the underlying assumptions made in the valuation
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process, the determination of those fair values requires estimations of the effects of uncertain future events at the
acquisition date and as a result the carrying amounts of some assets, particularly, property, plant and equipment,
acquired through a business combination could therefore differ significantly in the future. As prescribed by IFRS 3 –
Business Combinations, if the initial accounting for a business combination can be determined only provisionally by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination is effected, the acquirer must account for the business
combination using those provisional values and has a period, not to exceed twelve months, to complete the
purchase price allocation. Any adjustment of the provisional amount of an identifiable asset acquired or liability
assumed made as a result of completing the final accounting will be accounted for retrospectively to the original
acquisition date.
The preliminary purchase price allocation, which is subject to final adjustments, is as follows:

Net assets acquired
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables and prepaid expenses
Income tax receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Restricted cash
Long-term investments
Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other payables
Other long-term liabilities
Credit facility
Post-employment benefit obligations
Decommissioning provision

$

$

4,299
3,148
236
4,018
496
151
23
38,387
(5,766)
(568)
(7,728)
(5,161)
(2,760)
28,775

The acquisition of U.S. Silver by the Company was completed on December 23, 2014. As of the date of these
consolidated financial statements, the determination of fair value of assets and liabilities acquired is based on
preliminary estimates and has not been finalized. In particular, the fair values of the mining interests, property, plant
and equipment, and related tax consequences and exposures have been determined provisionally. The actual fair
values of these assets and liabilities may differ materially from the amounts disclosed in the preliminary fair value
above and are subject to change. Management will complete its review of the fair values within twelve months of
the acquisition date, in particular, the fair values of the mining interests, and property, plant and equipment with
consideration to any resulting tax impact.
Acquisition related costs of $2.0 million have been charged to corporate general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of loss for the year ended December 31, 2014.
These consolidated financial statements include U.S. Silver’s results from December 23, 2014 to December 31,
2014. The revenue from the sale of precious metals and net loss included in the consolidated statement of loss and
comprehensive loss since December 23, 2014 contributed by U.S. Silver was $0.2 million and $0.2 million,
respectively.
If U.S. Silver had been consolidated from January 1, 2014, on a pro forma basis, the consolidated statements of
loss and comprehensive loss would have included revenue of $34.0 million and net loss before income taxes of
$16.1 million. In determining these amounts, management has assumed that the fair value adjustments that arose
on the date of acquisition would have been the same if the acquisition had accrued on January 1, 2014.
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7. Financial risk management
a. Financial risk factors
The Company’s risk exposures and the impact on its financial instruments are summarized below:
(i)

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with a counterparty’s inability to fulfill its payment obligations. The
Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables. The
credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited because the Company invests its cash in deposits with wellcapitalized financial institutions with strong credit ratings in Canada and the United States. Under current
concentrate offtake agreements, risk on trade receivables related to concentrate sales is managed by receiving
payments for 85% to 100% of the estimated value of the concentrate shipped at the time of shipment or one month
following the time of shipment. As of December 31, 2014, the Company’s exposure to credit risk with respect to
trade receivables amounts to $4.2 million (December 31, 2013: $4.1 million). The Company believes credit risk for
Mexican Value Added Taxes of $2.3 million (December 31, 2013: $5.1 million) is not significant as they relate to
current amounts receivable from Mexican taxation authorities. There are no receivables that are past due and the
Company has no allowance for doubtful accounts at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.
(ii)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they arise. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities when
due. The Company’s liquidity requirements are met through a variety of sources, including cash, cash generated
from operations, existing credit facilities and debt and equity capital markets. As at December 31, 2014, the
Company had cash and cash equivalents of $15.2 million to settle trade and other payables of $13.1 million. The
Company’s trade payables have contractual maturities of less than 30 days and are subject to normal trade terms.
The following table presents the contractual maturities of the Company’s financial liabilities on an undiscounted
basis:

December 31, 2014
3 months
to 1 year
2-5 years

Less than
3 months
Trade and other payables
$
Derivative liability
Credit facility
Interest on credit facility
Leases
Other long-term liabilities
Decommissioning provision
$
(iii)

13,070
502
223
7
32
13,834

$

$

2,155
625
21
96
2,897

$

$

5,592
282
42
833
6,749

Over 5
years
$

$

559
3,871
4,430

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk.
(1) Interest rate risk
The Company is not subject to significant interest rate risk as the existing credit facility has a fixed interest rate.
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(2) Currency risk
As at December 31, 2014, the Company is exposed to foreign currency risk through financial assets and
liabilities denominated in CAD and Mexican pesos (“MXP”):
Financial instruments that may impact the Company’s net earnings or other comprehensive income due to
currency fluctuations include CAD and MXP denominated assets and liabilities which are included in the
following table:
As at December 31, 2014
CAD
MXP
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables
Credit facility

$

7,683
164
2,925
7,747

$

323
2,365
3,447
-

As at December 31, 2014, the CAD/USD and MXP/USD exchange rates were 1.16 and 14.75,
respectively. The sensitivity of the Company’s net loss and comprehensive loss due to changes in the
exchange rates as at December 31, 2014 is included in the following table:

CAD/USD
MXP/USD
Exchange rate Exchange rate
+/- 10%
+/- 10%
Approximate impact on:
Net loss
Other comprehensive loss

$

538
4

$

1,719
38

The Company may, from time to time, employ derivative financial instruments to manage exposure to
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.
At December 31, 2014, the Company had foreign exchange derivatives to buy 60 million MXP extendable
month to month at an exchange rate of 13.13 MXP/USD valued at approximately $4.6 million. The spot
rate at December 31, 2014 was 14.75 MXP/USD with the contracts having a value of approximately $4.1
million. Accordingly, the Company recorded an unrealized loss of $0.5 million (2013: nil) on these
contracts.
(3) Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors
affecting all similar financial instruments in the market. As at December 31, 2014, the Company had certain
amounts related to the sales of concentrates that have only been provisionally priced. A ±10% fluctuation
in silver, zinc, lead, copper and gold prices would affect trade receivables by approximately $0.4 million.
The Company does not use derivatives to manage its exposure to price risk.
b. Fair values
The fair value of cash, restricted cash, trade and other payables, credit facility and other long-term liabilities
approximate their carrying amounts. The methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair value of other
financial assets and liabilities are as follows:

54 Scorpio Mining Corporation 2014 Annual Report

Scorpio Mining Corporation

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, unless otherwise stated)










Cash equivalents: The fair value of cash equivalents is valued using quoted market prices in active
markets. The Company’s cash equivalents consist of money market accounts held at financial institutions
which have original maturities of less than 90 days.
Trade receivables: The fair value of trade receivables from silver sales contracts that contain provisional
pricing terms is determined using the appropriate quoted forward price from the exchange that is the
principal active market for the particular metal. As such, there is an embedded derivative feature within
trade receivables.
Investment in Scorpio Gold: The investment in Scorpio Gold Corporation shares have been marked to
market based on the trading price as at December 31, 2014.
Long-term investments: The fair value of long-term investments is determined based on the closing price of
each security at the balance sheet date. The closing price is a quoted market price obtained from the
exchange that is the principal active market for the particular security.
Embedded derivatives: Revenues from the sale of metals produced since the commencement of
commercial production are based on provisional prices at the time of shipment. Variations between the
price recorded at the time of sale and the actual final price received from the customer are caused by
changes in market prices for metals sold and result in an embedded derivative in revenues and accounts
receivable.
Derivatives: The Company uses derivative and non-derivative instruments to manage financial risks,
including commodity, interest rate, and foreign exchange risks. The use of derivative contracts is governed
by documented risk management policies and approved limits. The Company does not use derivatives for
speculative purposes. The fair value of the Company’s derivative instruments is based on quoted market
prices for similar instruments and at market prices at the valuation date.

The fair value hierarchy establishes three levels to classify the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value:





Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 inputs are quoted prices in markets that are not active, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities
in active markets, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability (for example,
interest rate and yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals, forward pricing curves used to
value currency and commodity contracts and volatility measurements used to value option contracts), or
inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data or other means.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable (supported by little or no market activity).

Level 1
Cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Investment in Scorpio Gold
Long-term investments
Level 2
Trade receivables
Derivative liability
Credit facility
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2014

December 31,
2013

$

$

10,336
368
1,655
32
6,768
502
7,747

5,347
2,495
9,294
-
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8. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
Value added taxes receivable
Other receivables

December 31,
2014

December 31,
2013

$

$

$

4,151
2,325
292
6,768

$

4,143
5,069
82
9,294

9. Inventories

Concentrates
Spare parts and supplies
Ore stockpile

December 31,
2014

December 31,
2013

$

$

$

3,334
7,481
1,538
12,353

$

966
5,840
1,660
8,466

The amount of inventories recognized as an expense during the year ended December 31, 2014 was $26.1 million
(2013: $23.5 million). During the year ended December 31, 2014, the concentrate inventory write-down to net
realizable value included in cost of sales was $1.7 million (2013: $0.1 million).
10. Investment in Scorpio Gold
At December 31, 2014, the Company held 11,292,306 common shares of Scorpio Gold Corporation (“Scorpio
Gold”) which represented approximately 9% of Scorpio Gold’s issued and outstanding common shares.
The investment in Scorpio Gold is accounted for as an available-for-sale financial asset which is reviewed quarterly
for significant or prolonged decline in fair value requiring impairment and more frequently when economic or market
concerns warrant such evaluation. This review includes an analysis of the facts and circumstances of this financial
asset, its market price, the severity of loss and the length of time the fair value has been below cost.
During the third quarter of 2013, after management's review and based on objective evidence, an impairment of
$5.3 million, all of which was previously recorded in other comprehensive loss (“OCL”), was reclassified from OCL
and recognized in the consolidated statements of loss. This impairment represented the difference between cost
and fair market value of this investment during the period. The fair market value of $2.5 million at December 31,
2013 subsequently decreased to $1.5 million as at September 30, 2014 and the Company reclassified the
cumulative gain of $0.3 million previously recorded in OCL at December 31, 2013 and recorded an additional $0.7
million as impairment in the consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive loss. The fair market value
subsequently increased to $1.7 million as at December 31, 2014 resulting in a gain of $0.3 million recorded in OCL.

Investment, beginning of year
Loss on adjustments to investment during the year
Investment, end of year
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2014

December 31,
2013

$

$

$

2,495
(840)
1,655

$

7,491
(4,996)
2,495
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11. Property, plant and equipment
Mining Non-producing
interests
properties
Cost
Balance at January 1, 2013
Reclassification
Assets acquired
Change in decommissioning provision
Disposals
Balance at December 31, 2013
Acquisition of U.S. Silver & Gold Inc.
Reclassification
Assets acquired
Change in decommissioning provision
Disposals
Balance at December 31, 2014
Accumulated depreciation
and depletion
Balance at January 1, 2013
Depreciation/depletion for the year
Impairments (Note 12)
Disposals
Balance at December 31, 2013
Depreciation/depletion for the year
Impairments (Note 12)
Disposals
Balance at December 31, 2014
Carrying value
at December 31, 2013
at December 31, 2014

$

18,541
9,555
22
28,118
27,398
806
96
194
56,612

$

$

$

10,032
3,789
1,068
14,889
7,556
2,766
25,211

$
$

13,229
31,401

$

$

$

Corporate
office
equipment

Plant and
equipment

67,791 $
(11,092)
9,136
65,835
(2,690)
12,284
75,429 $

Total

19,357 $
1,537
533
21,427
10,899
1,884
2,117
(14)
36,313 $

99 $
1
(10)
90
90
7
187 $

105,788
9,670
22
(10)
115,470
38,387
14,504
194
(14)
168,541

22 $
17
(1)
38
17
55 $

15,466
6,484
1,068
(1)
23,017
11,008
53,268
(5)
87,288

52
132

92,453
81,253

$

$

50,502
50,502

$

5,412 $
2,678
8,090
3,435
(5)
11,520 $

$
$

65,835
24,927

$
$

13,337
24,793

$
$

$
$

12. Impairment of mining interests
As at June 30, 2013, there was evidence of the potential impairment of the carrying value of the Company’s
Nuestra Señora Mine due to declining metal prices and the restatement of ore reserves in April 2013. As a result of
these events, the Company assessed the recoverability of the carrying amount of this property. The recoverable
amount of the Company’s Nuestra Señora Mine was determined based on the after-tax discounted cash flows
expected to be derived from this property’s fair-market value less estimated costs to sell. The after-tax discounted
cash flows were determined based on life-of-mine cash flow projections which incorporate management’s best
estimates of foreign exchange rates, commodity prices, future capital requirements and production costs along with
geological assumptions and judgments made in estimating the size, grade and recovery of the ore bodies. As a
result of impairment tests performed as at June 30, 2013, the Company recorded an impairment loss of $1.1 million
which is allocated entirely against capitalized expenditures on the Nuestra Señora Mine.
As at December 31, 2014, there was evidence of the potential impairment of the carrying value of the Company’s
Cosalá District due to declining metal prices and suspension of the El Cajón Project. As a result of these events,
the Company assessed the recoverability of the carrying amount of these properties. The recoverable amount of
the Company’s Cosalá District mining properties was determined based on the after-tax discounted cash flows
expected to be derived from this property’s fair-market value less estimated costs to sell. The after-tax discounted
cash flows were determined based on life-of-mine cash flow projections which incorporate management’s best
estimates of foreign exchange rates, commodity prices, future capital requirements and production costs along with
geological assumptions and judgments made in estimating the size, grade and recovery of the ore bodies. As a
result of impairment tests performed as at December 31, 2014, the Company recorded an impairment loss of $53.3
million which is allocated against both the Nuestra Señora Mine and the Company’s non-producing properties.
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The fair value models are considered to be Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy. Key assumptions used in the fair
value models used as at December 31, 2014 include discount rate of 13% based on the Company’s weighted
average cost of capital, estimated long-term silver price from $16 per ounce in 2015 up to $19 per ounce in 2020
and beyond and estimated long-term zinc, lead and copper prices of $1.00, $0.91 and $3.00 per pound,
respectively, based on observable market data including spot price and industry analyst consensus, and mine life of
up to 9 years.
13. Credit facility
On August 7, 2013, U.S. Silver signed a credit agreement with Royal Capital Management Corp. (“RCM”) as
security agent, and certain lenders (the “RCM Credit Agreement”). The RCM Credit Agreement provides for the
issuance of notes with an aggregate principal amount of $8.5 million CAD for a term of three years at an interest
rate of 12% per annum payable on a monthly basis. Security is provided by a first charge on all material assets of
U.S. Silver and its subsidiaries. As at December 31, 2014, the Company had drawn $8.5 million CAD on the facility.
Beginning August 2015, two years following the date of issue, the notes will be redeemed in monthly increments of
$0.5 million CAD, with the balance due and payable on maturity. The debt may be pre-paid at any time during the
three-year term, subject to a repayment fee. As at December 31, 2014, the fair value of the prepayment option is
nil.
In connection with the RCM Credit Agreement, the Company issued 10,625,000 U.S. Silver warrants (or
17,850,000 Scorpio Mining equivalent warrants) upon execution to RCM where each warrant is exercisable for one
U.S. Silver common share at an exercise price of $0.68 CAD (or for one Scorpio Mining common share at an
exercise price of $0.40 CAD) for a period of five years (see share capital note 16). A financing cost is payable to
RCM on July 31, 2018 in the amount of $2.1 million CAD less the amount which the aggregate share value of
shares acquired by RCM upon exercise of the warrants exceeds the exercise price of the warrants. As at December
31, 2014, the fair value of the financing cost payable was estimated to be $0.4 million.
14. Post-employment benefit obligations
The Company maintains two non-contributory defined benefit pension plans covering substantially all employees at
its U.S. operating subsidiary, U.S. Silver – Idaho, Inc. One plan covers salaried employees and one plan covers
hourly employees. Benefits for the salaried plan are based on salary and years of service. Hourly plan benefits are
based on negotiated benefits and years of service. The Company’s funding policy is to contribute annually the
minimum amount prescribed, as specified by applicable regulations. The expected average service life of the active
plan participants as at December 31, 2014 is approximately 9 years.
The amounts recognized in the consolidated statements financial position are as follows:

December 31,
2014
Present value of funded obligations
Fair value of plan assets
Deficit of funded plans

$
$

20,214
15,033
5,181

The amounts recognized in the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss are as follows:

December 31,
2014
Current service costs and interest costs
included in wages and employee expense
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The principal actuarial assumptions were as follows:

December 31,
2014
Discount rate (expense)
Discount rate (year end disclosures)
Future salary increases (salaried plan only)

4.75%
4.00%
5.00%

A 1% change in discount rate would have resulted in approximately $3.0 million increase in the defined benefit
obligation from $20.2 million to $23.2 million as at December 31, 2014. A 1% change in future salary increases
would have resulted in approximately $0.1 million increase in the defined benefit obligation from $20.2 million to
$20.3 million as at December 31, 2014.
Plan assets are fully comprised of pooled or mutual funds. The expected return on plan assets is determined by
considering the expected returns available on the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yield
on fixed interest investments is based on gross redemption yields as at the end of the reporting period. Expected
returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return in the market.
Expected contributions to pension benefit plans for the year ended December 31, 2015 are approximately $0.8
million.
15. Decommissioning provision
The decommissioning provision consists of land rehabilitation, demolition of buildings and mine facilities, and
related costs. Although the ultimate amount of the decommissioning provision is uncertain, the fair value of these
obligations is based on information currently available, including closure plans and the Company’s interpretation of
current regulatory requirements.
Fair value is determined based on the net present value of future cash expenditures upon reclamation and closure.
Reclamation and closure costs are capitalized into property, plant and equipment depending on the nature of the
asset related to the obligation and amortized over the life of the related asset.
The decommissioning provision relates to reclamation and closure costs of the Company’s Cosalá District and
Galena Complex. The decommissioning provision is estimated at an undiscounted amount of $6.8 million, over a
period of 2 to 11 years, and discounted using a risk free rate varying from 1.6% to 5.9%.

Balance, beginning of year
Provisions acquired from U.S. Silver & Gold Inc.
Change in estimates
Accretion on decommissioning provision
Balance, end of year
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$

$

$

1,777
2,760
194
101
4,832

$

1,666
22
89
1,777
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16. Share capital
a. Authorized
Authorized share capital consists of an unlimited number of common shares.

Issued
336,057,650 (2013: 198,588,913) common shares

December 31,
2014

December 31,
2013

$

$

179,897

153,778

b. Stock option plan
The number of shares reserved for issuance under the Company’s stock option plan is limited to 10% of the
number of common shares which are issued and outstanding on the date of a particular grant of options. Under the
plan, the Board of Directors determines the term of a stock option to a maximum of 10 years, the period of time
during which the options may vest and become exercisable as well as the option exercise price which shall not be
less than the closing price of the Company’s share on the Toronto Stock Exchange on the date immediately
preceding the date of grant. The Compensation Committee determines and makes recommendations to the Board
of Directors as to the recipients of, and nature and size of, share-based compensation awards in compliance with
applicable securities law, stock exchange and other regulatory requirements.
A summary of changes in the Company’s outstanding stock options is presented below:

December 31,
2014
Weighted
average
exercise
Number
price
(thousands)
CAD
Balance, beginning of year
Exchanged from U.S. Silver
Granted
Exercised
Expired
Balance, end of year

13,068
11,069
(1,465)
22,672

0.95
1.09
0.84
1.03

December 31,
2013
Weighted
average
exercise
Number
price
(thousands)
CAD
11,873
4,310
(200)
(2,915)
13,068

1.17
0.49
0.30
1.20
0.95

The weighted average share price and closing price of the Company’s stock options exercised during the year
ended December 31, 2013 were $0.30 and $0.50, respectively. There were no options exercised during the year
ended December 31, 2014.
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The following table summarizes information on stock options outstanding and exercisable as at December 31,
2014:

Exercise
price
CAD

Weighted
average
remaining
contractual
life
(years)

0.20 to 0.39
0.40 to 0.89
0.90 to 1.39
1.40 to 1.89
1.90 to 2.39
2.40 to 2.89
2.90 to 3.39

1.96
2.28
1.66
1.42
1.70
1.53
1.69

Outstanding
(thousands)

Weighted
average
exercise
price
CAD

Exercisable
(thousands)

Weighted
average
exercise
price
CAD

4,670
6,300
7,857
1,359
1,562
802
122
22,672

0.32
0.60
1.25
1.61
2.20
2.69
3.01
1.03

2,097
6,154
7,823
1,193
1,510
802
122
19,701

0.34
0.61
1.25
1.58
2.20
2.69
3.01
1.12

c. Share-based payments
The weighted average fair value at grant date of the Company’s stock options granted during the year ended
December 31, 2013 was $0.22. There were no options granted during the year ended December 31, 2014.
The Company used the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model to estimate fair value using the following weightedaverage assumptions:

Year ended
December 31,
2014
Expected stock price volatility
Risk free interest rate
Expected life
Expected forfeiture rate
Expected dividend yield

(1)

Share-based payments included in cost of sales
Share-based payments included in general and
administrative expenses
Total share-based payments
(1)

Year ended
December 31,
2013

-

70%
1.06%
2.75 years
3.00%
0%

$

51

$

232

$

155
206

$

491
723

Expected volatility has been based on historical volatility of the Company’s publicly traded shares.
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d. Warrants
The warrants that are issued and outstanding as at December 31, 2014 are as follows:
Number of
warrants
6,110,444
1,448,278
3,403,468
970,350
17,850,000
8,094,517
880,320
38,757,377

Exercise
price (CAD)
0.23
0.43
0.43
0.35
0.40
0.45
0.38

Issuance
Expiry
date
date
Dec 2014 Dec 22, 2017
May 2014 Mar 21, 2016
Mar 2014 Mar 21, 2016
Mar 2014 Mar 21, 2016
Aug 2013
Aug 7, 2018
Aug 2013 Aug 22, 2016
Aug 2013 Aug 22, 2016

The warrants represent the 23,069,867 warrants previously issued by U.S. Silver and are now exercisable for
warrants of the Company under the 1.68 exchange ratio as a result of the merger between U.S. Silver and the
Company.
e. Restricted Share Units:
The Company has a Restricted Share Unit Plan under which eligible directors, officers and key employees of the
Company are entitled to receive awards of restricted share units. Each restricted share unit is equivalent in value to
the fair market value of a common share of the Company on the date of grant with the value of each cash settled
award charged to compensation expense over the period of vesting. At each reporting date, the compensation
expense and associated liability (which is included in trade and other payables in the consolidated statement of
financial position) are adjusted to reflect changes in market value. As at December 31, 2014, 2,062,968 restricted
share units are outstanding at an aggregate value of $0.3 million. The restricted share units represent the
1,227,957 restricted share units previously issued by U.S. Silver exchanged for restricted share units of the
Company under the 1.68 exchange ratio as a result of the merger between U.S. Silver and the Company.
17. Weighted average basic and diluted number of common shares outstanding

Basic weighted average number of shares
Effect of dilutive stock options
Diluted weighted average number of shares

Year ended
December 31,
2014

Year ended
December 31,
2013

201,601,926
201,601,926

198,517,680
198,517,680

Diluted weighted average number of common shares for the year ended December 31, 2014 excludes 22,672,000
(2013: 13,068,139) anti-dilutive stock options and 38,757,377 (2013: nil) anti-dilutive warrants.
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18. Corporate general and administrative expenses

Year ended
December 31,
2014
Salaries and benefits
Directors’ fees
Share-based payments
Professional fees
Office and general
Shareholder action
Acquisition costs

$

1,106
353
155
482
439
856
1,973
5,364

$

Year ended
December 31,
2013
$

1,118
224
491
296
790
2,919

$

19. Income taxes
The following is a reconciliation of income taxes calculated at the Canadian federal and provision statutory tax rate
to the income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013:

Year ended
December 31,
2014
Loss before income taxes
Combined statutory tax rate
Income tax recovery computed at statutory tax rate
Reconciling items:
Effect of recognition of 7.5% mining royalty in Mexico
Effect of higher tax rate in foreign jurisdictions
Non-deductible items
Adjustments to prior year tax assets
Foreign exchange adjustments
Non-recognition of tax assets
Other
Total income tax expense (recovery)
Effective tax rate

$

$

(65,944)
26.50%
(17,475)
446
(346)
2,504
1,207
25,968
447
12,751
(19.34%)

Year ended
December 31,
2013
$

$

(9,410)
26.50%
(2,494)
830
(155)
145
387
623
174
(490)
5.20%

On December 11, 2013, the Mexican government enacted a tax reform to introduce a mining royalty effective
January 1, 2014. This royalty is deductible for tax purposes and is calculated as 7.5% of a royalty base which is
computed as taxable revenues for income tax purposes (except interest and inflationary adjustment), less allowable
deductions for income tax purposes (except interest, inflationary adjustment, depreciation and mining fees), less
prospecting and exploration expenses for the year.
The 7.5% mining royalty is treated as an income tax in accordance with IFRS for financial reporting purpose, as it is
based on a measure of revenue less certain specified costs. On substantial enactment, a taxable temporary
difference arises, as certain mining assets related to extractive activities have book basis but no tax basis for
purposes of the royalty. The Company has recognized a deferred tax liability of $1.3 million as at December 31,
2014 in respect of this royalty. This deferred tax liability will be drawn down to $nil as a reduction of tax expense
over the life of mine as the mine and its related assets are depleted or depreciated.
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Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are shown below:

December 31,
2014
Deferred tax assets
Mining interests
Non-capital losses
Share issue costs
Provisions
Non-producing properties
Total gross deferred tax assets
Unrecognized deferred tax assets
Total deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities
Mining interests
Current assets
Other
Total deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities)

$

14,568
27,904
187
4,035
889
47,583
(43,203)
4,380
(1,790)
(1,621)
(2,240)
(5,651)
(1,271)

$

The Company has the following non-capital losses for income tax purposes.

Expiry
2015
2016
2017
2018
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033

U.S.
$

$
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535
705
661
530
638
615
587
179
110
19,110
23,670

Canada
$

$

164
142
1,572
1,819
7,571
429
2,825
7,105
21,627

Mexico
$

$

990
3,392
4,674
31,832
173
4,690
45,751

December 31,
2013

$

$

5,216
18,813
5
995
227
25,256
(3,731)
21,525
(8,315)
(2,057)
(65)
(10,437)
11,088
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20. Related party transactions
Remuneration to directors and key management who have the authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and continuing the activities of the Company:

Year ended
December 31,
2014
Salaries and benefits
Severance
Directors’ fees
Share-based payments

$

Year ended
December 31,
2013

1,546
837
353
176

$

1,672
224
628

21. Segmented and geographic information, and major customers
a. Segmented information
The Company’s operations comprise of three reporting segments engaged in acquisition, exploration, development
and exploration of mineral resource properties in Mexico and the United States. Management has determined the
operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the chief operating decision makers that are used to make
strategic decisions.
b. Geographic information
All revenues from sale of concentrates for year ended December 31, 2014 were earned in Mexico and the United
States (December 31, 2013: Mexico).
The following segmented information is presented as at and during the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013.
The U.S. operations segment only includes results from December 23, 2014 for the year ended December 31,
2014.
Mexican
Operations
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Income tax receivable (payable)
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Investment in Scorpio Gold
Restricted cash
Long-term investments
Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets
Total assets
Trade and other payables
Derivative liability
Advance on mining concession sales
Other long-term liabilities
Credit facility
Post-employment benefit obligations
Decommissioning provision
Deferred tax liabilities
Total liabilities

$

$
$

$

8,970
4,746
8,142
100
216
42,855
65,029
5,655
502
87
2,072
1,271
9,587

As at December 31, 2014
U.S.
Corporate
Operations
and Other
$

$
$

$
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2,334 $
1,858
(124)
4,211
323
152
38,266
47,020 $
4,371
559
5,181
2,760
12,871

$

$

3,920
164
360
276
1,655
32
132
6,539
3,044
7,747
10,791

Mexican
Operations

Total
$

$
$

$

15,224
6,768
236
12,353
699
1,655
368
32
81,253
118,588
13,070
502
87
559
7,747
5,181
4,832
1,271
33,249

$

$
$

$

As at December 31, 2013
U.S.
Corporate
Operations
and Other

10,111
9,281
8,466
513
92,401
11,088
131,860

$

2,313
1,777
4,090

$

$

$

-

$

-

$

$

$

5,326
13
85
2,495
52
7,971
295
295

Total
$

$
$

$

15,437
9,294
8,466
598
2,495
92,453
11,088
139,831
2,608
1,777
4,385
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Year ended December 31, 2014
Mexican
U.S.
Corporate
Operations
Operations
and Other
Revenue
Cost of sales
Depletion and amortization
Corporate general and administrative
Exploration costs
Accretion on decommissioning provision
Interest income
Foreign exchange gain (loss)
Unrealized loss on derivative liability
Impairment of mining interests
Impairment of investment in Scorpio Gold
Loss before income taxes
Income tax recovery (expense)
Net loss for the period

$

$

31,243 $
(25,812)
(10,881)
(101)
(483)
(502)
(53,268)
(59,804)
(12,751)
(72,555) $

236 $
(323)
(127)
(12)
(226)
(226) $

$
(5,364)
86
86
(722)
(5,914)
(5,914) $

Total
31,479 $
(26,135)
(11,008)
(5,364)
(12)
(101)
86
(397)
(502)
(53,268)
(722)
(65,944)
(12,751)
(78,695) $

Year ended December 31, 2013
Mexican
U.S.
Corporate
Operations
Operations
and Other
30,213 $
(23,548)
(6,484)
(89)
(480)
(1,068)
(1,456)
490
(966) $

-

$

$

$
(2,919)
153
130
(5,318)
(7,954)
(7,954) $

Total
30,213
(23,548)
(6,484)
(2,919)
(89)
153
(350)
(1,068)
(5,318)
(9,410)
490
(8,920)

c. Major customers
The Company sold concentrates to five customers during the year ended December 31, 2014 (three customers
prior to the acquisition of U.S. Silver) and three customers during the year ended December 31, 2013, with each
customer accounting for 51%, 27%, 21%, 1%, and 0% (2013: 51%, 33%, 16%) of revenues, respectively.
22. Capital management
Capital is defined as equity. The Company’s objectives when managing its capital are to safeguard its ability to
continue as a going concern and to maximize the value for its shareholders.
The Company’s activities have been funded so far through debt and equity financing based on cash needs, and
through operations. The Company typically sells its shares by way of private placement. There were no changes in
these objectives, policies and processes used to manage capital during the year.
The Company manages its capital structure and determines its capital requirements in light of the changing
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its assets. To reach its objectives the Company may have to
maintain or adjust its capital structure by issuing new share capital or new debt.
At this stage of its development it is the policy of the Company to preserve cash to fund its operations and not to
pay dividends. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.
The following summarizes the Company’s capital structure:
December 31,
2014
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company

$

85,329

December 31,
2013
$

135,436

23. Contingencies
Due to the size, complexity and nature of the Company’s operations, various legal and tax matters arise in the
ordinary course of business. The Company accrues for such items when a liability is both probable and the amount
can be reasonably estimated.
In November 2010, the Company received a reassessment from the Mexican tax authorities related to its Mexican
subsidiary, Minera Cosalá, for the year ended December 31, 2007. The tax authorities disallowed the deduction of
transactions with certain suppliers for an amount of approximately $13.3 million (MXP 196.8 million), of which $5.7
million (MXP 84.4 million) would be applied against available tax losses. The Company appealed this reassessment
and the Mexican tax authorities subsequently reversed $6.4 million (MXP 94.6 million) of their original
reassessment. The remaining $6.9 million (MXP 102.2 million) consists of $5.7 million (MXP 84.4 million) related to
transactions with certain suppliers and $1.2 million (MXP 17.8 million) of value added taxes thereon. The Company
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appealed the remaining reassessment with the Mexican Tax Court in December 2011. The Company may be
required to post a bond of approximately $1.2 million (MXP 17.8 million) to secure the value added tax portion of
the reassessment. The deductions of $5.7 million (MXP 84.4 million), if denied, would be offset by available tax
losses. No amount has been recognized in the consolidated financial statements as the Company believes it is not
likely that the reassessment will be upheld by the Tax Court. There has been no change in status of the tax
assessment since December 31, 2013, as the Company waits for it to be addressed by the tax authorities.
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